Pecyn Dogfennau

Aoend %%sﬁmw
genaa Fr—

Is-bwylligor Trwyddedu

Dyddiad: Dydd Mawrth, 4 Chwefror 2020
Amser: 1.00 pm
Lleoliad:  Canolfan Dinesig

At: Cynghorwyr: J Hughes (Cadeirydd), H Thomas (Dirprwy Gadeirydd), K Thomas,
| Hayat, M Al-Nuaimi, J Cleverly, C Ferris, Y Forsey, T Suller and M Kellaway

Eitem Wardiau
Dan Sylw
1 Ymddiheuriadau dros Absenoldeb
2 Datganiadau o ddiddordeb
3 Is-bwyllgor Trwyddedu: Cod Ymarfer (Tudalennau 3 - 16)
4 Adolygu Trwydded Safle o dan Adran 51 Deddf Trwyddedu 2003: Sain Silian
Sanremo, 131 Heol Caerllion, Casnewydd, NP19 7BZ (Tudalennau
17 - 76)

Person cyswllit: Meryl James, Governance Officer,
Ffon: 01633 656656

E-bost: democratic.services@newport.gov.uk
Dyddiad cyhoeddi: Dydd Mawrth, 21 lonawr 2020



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



Eitem Agenda 3

Conduct and Procedure of Licensing Sub-committee

1 Membership and appointment of Chair

1.1 The Licensing Sub-committee comprises all members of the committee, other than those
who have an interest or who is the ward member for the ward in which premises under
consideration is located. The quorum is three. The Chair will be elected on the day by a
simple majority vote.

1.2 For example, if they live in the vicinity of the licensed premises, or have a friendship or a
close personal association with either the applicant or any objector this would disqualify the
Member from considering the matter.

1.3 Members of the Licensing Sub-Committees should inform the Senior Democratic Services
Officer immediately if they consider that they are disqualified from considering any
application, if members of the Licensing Sub-Committee become aware of any personal
interest in any application before them they should declare the interest at the beginning of
the meeting and withdraw immediately.

2 Ward Councillors

2.1 Ward Councillors are no longer expressly permitted to make representation in their capacity
as Ward Councillors although they are entitled to make representations as individuals falling
within the category of “any other person”, if they are likely to be affected by an application
(for example if they live in close proximity to the licensed premises). Councillors however
must comply at all times with the Members Code of Conduct (“the Code”). Ward Councillors
should avoid discussing the application with any of the Licensing Sub-Committee beforehand
to avoid any suspicion of undue influence or breach of the general obligation in the Code not
to improperly use their position as a Councillor to secure any advantage.

2.2 If a Ward Councillor has a personal interest in an application (for example, because he/she
lives in close proximity to the premises), then this is also likely to be a “prejudicial” interest
under the Code. Provided that the Member declares the interest and withdraws from the
hearing after making representations, then he/she is entitled under paragraph 14(2) of the
Code to appear at the hearing in the same way as any other member of the public having
made a relevant representation within the meaning of the Act (“any other person”). This also
applies whether or not the Councillor is a Member of the Licensing Committee. Because of
this “personal and prejudicial” interest the Ward Councillor cannot have any other
involvement with officers or members regarding the application.

2.3 Ward Councillors who are not members of Licensing Committee may also act as the
appointed representatives for any other person at the hearing, if requested to do so, but they
should avoid discussing the application with any of the Licensing Sub-Committee
beforehand. If a Ward Member is representing any other person, that other person must
have objected by their own accord before a Ward Member can be requested to act as their
representative at the hearing.

2.4 Ward Councillors who are members of Licensing Committee should not appear as the
appointed representatives for any other person at the hearing because of the requirements of
natural justice and the need to avoid giving any impression of undue influence or breach of
the general obligation in the Code not to improperly use their position as a Councillor to
secure any advantage.

Tudalen 3



3.1

3.2

5.1

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

Lobbying

Other Members must not lobby any Member of the Licensing Sub-committee, directly or
indirectly, about any application before them.

Members of the public or any of the parties must not lobby any members of the Licensing
Sub-Committee about any application before them. If any of the members of the Licensing
Sub-Committee are approached by any person about a licensing matter, they should explain
that they cannot discuss the matter and refer the person to the Licensing Officer. Any written
representations received by individual members of the Licensing Sub-Committee must be
passed to the Licensing Officer and reported at the hearing.

Chair of the Licensing Sub-Committee

The Chair of the Licensing Sub-Committee is to be elected by Members on the day by simple
majority vote.

Quorum

Although the Act allows for the hearing to continue with two members present, the Council’s
Constitution and the Statement of Licensing Policy provides that three Councillors shall
constitute a quorum for any meeting and it is good administrative practice for three members
to be present.

If the meeting becomes inquorate at any time, the matter will need to be adjourned or
referred to full Licensing Committee.

Membership may change during the course of a Sub-Committee meeting only if an individual
member is disqualified from considering some but not all of the applications on the agenda.
All members considering an application however must be present throughout the individual
hearing. If, for any reason, a member needs to withdraw during the hearing, the proceedings
should be temporarily adjourned until the member returns. The meeting will only commence
if quorate. If a member arrives late and after the hearing commences, he or she will be
disqualified from hearing the specific case under consideration but can hear other cases set
out in the agenda.

Statutory Guidance

The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 SI 44/2005 and the The Licensing Act
2003 (Hearings) (Amendment) Regulations 2004 SI 78/2005 (“the Regulations”) made under
Section 183 of the Act set out the statutory framework for the Licensing Sub-Committee
hearings.

These Regulations make provision for hearings required to be held by the Council as
Licensing Authority, under the Licensing Act 2003. In particular, the Regulations provide for
the timing of the hearings and the notification requirements regarding the time and date of
the hearings and information to be given to the parties. In addition, provision is made for a
party to provide information to the Licensing Committee about attendance at a hearing,
representations, the seeking of permission for another person to attend to assist and whether
a party believes that a hearing is necessary.

The Regulations provide for a range of procedural issues to govern the way in which
preparations are made for a hearing, the procedures to be followed, the rights of parties at
the hearing, the keeping of records and the manner of giving notices. The Regulations also
make provision for the timing of the Licensing Committee’s determination following a hearing.

Tudalen 4



6.4

7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

Insofar as the Regulations do not make specific provision for procedures for and at hearings,
the Licensing Authority can determine its own procedures.

Notice of Hearings

The provisions of the Local Government Act 1972 requiring at least three clear working days’
notice of Council and Committee meetings do not apply to hearings conducted under the
Licensing Act 2003.

Instead Regulation 6 of the Regulations prescribes the period of notice to be given for a
Licensing Committee hearing, depending upon the type of application being considered.

7.2.1 At least two clear working days’ notice must be given if the hearing is to consider
= the cancellation of an interim authority notice following a police objection
= counter notice following a police objection to a temporary event notice

7.2.2 atleast five clear working days’ notice must be given if the hearing is to consider
= review of premises licence following a closure order
= determination of application for conversion of existing licence
= determination of application for conversion of existing club certificate
= determination of application by holder of justices’ licence for the grant of a
personal licence

7.2.3 In all other cases, at least 10 clear working day’s notice of the hearing must be given.
Timescale for arranging hearings

Regulations 4 and 5 and Schedule 1 set out the time periods within which the Council is
required to arrange hearings. Where a hearing cannot be concluded in one day and has to
be held on more than one day, the Regulations require that the hearing must be arranged to
take place on consecutive working days.

The time frame for arranging hearings again depends on the nature of the application and
varies from 20 working days from the last date when representation may be made or notice
may be received from the Police to five working days in the case of cancellation of an interim
authority notice following a police objection.

Form of Notice

Regulation 34 requires that notice of the hearing shall be in writing although it is a matter for
the Council to determine how the notice should be given. The Regulations specifically
provide that notice can be given electronically (eg by email or fax transmission) provided that
the recipient agrees to this method of notice beforehand and a hard copy of the notice is also
despatched at the same time. The notice is then deemed to have been properly served at
the time of the electronic transmission. Any notice served by second class post would
generally be deemed to have been served within two working days.

It is recommended that all notices and information should be sent to the parties by second
class post. In the case of emergency applications that have to be dealt with at short notice or
where the parties specifically request, copies will also be sent by email or fax, where these
details are known.

Tudalen 5



10

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

11

Information to be provided

Regulation 7 provides that the following information must be sent out with the notice of
hearing

= The rights of attendance, assistance and representation

= The consequences if a party does not attend or is not represented at the hearing (which
will usually be that the hearing will proceed in the party’s absence)

= The procedure to be followed at the hearing

= Any particular points on which the Licensing Committee considers that it wants
clarification from any party at the hearing

Regulation 7(2) also provides that, in relation to the hearings listed in column 1 of Schedule 3
of the Regulations, certain specified documents must be sent with the notice of hearing to the
persons identified. For most types of application, this means that copies of the relevant
representations or notices given must be sent to the applicants or licence holders.

The Regulations require that the notice of the hearing and supporting information must be
sent to the appropriate parties ie the applicant and any persons making relevant
representations. There is no requirement for public notice to be given of the hearing or for
the supporting information to be made available to the press and public or any other
members of the Council. The Council however has a discretion as to whether or not to
publicise the hearing more widely.

Having regard to the principles of open government, the Constitutional requirements that
decisions are taken in a transparent and accountable manner and the requirements of
Regulation 14(1) that hearings are generally conducted in public, it is recommended that the
Licensing Sub-committees follow the same publicity arrangements as with other Committee
meetings.

Requirements for Applicants and any other persons

Upon receipt of the notice of the meeting, the Applicant and any other person must inform
the Council in writing

=  Whether they intend to attend or be represented at the hearing

= Whether they consider a hearing to be unnecessary

= Requests for any other people to attend the hearing eg witnesses (including their names
and a brief description of the evidence that they can give and its relevance to the
application)

In the case of emergency applications, such as the cancellation of an interim authority notice
following representations by the police or a counter notice following a police objection to a
temporary events notice, this information must be provided not later than one working day
before the hearing. In the case of the review of premises licences following closure orders,
an application for conversion of existing licences or club certificates and the grant of personal
licences, the information must be provided at least two working days before the hearing. In
all other cases the information must be provided at least five working days before the
hearing.

It is recommended that a separate letter be sent to the Applicant and any other person at the
same time as the agenda for the meeting, reminding them of the need for this information
and asking them for a response as soon as possible before the meeting. If the Licensing
Sub-committee is informed in good time before the meeting that the parties do not wish to
attend, then it may be possible to reschedule other business or applications for that meeting.

Tudalen 6



11.4

11.6

12

Regulation 9 allows the Council to dispense with the need for a hearing if the Applicant and
all any other persons agree. If all the parties respond to the request for information stating
that they consider a hearing to be unnecessary, the hearing can be vacated and notice given
to the parties accordingly. A determination must then be made within 10 working days of the
notice.

Regulation 10 provides that any party may withdraw their representations by giving written
notice at least 24 hours before the hearing or orally at the hearing itself. There are no
powers to avoid wasted costs in favour of either party in the event of an abortive hearing due
to late withdrawal of representations. The parties should be encouraged to give as much
notice as possible if they intend to withdraw their representations to avoid the unnecessary
time and expense of arranging a hearing.

Where all objections are withdrawn and/or all the parties agree that a hearing may be
dispensed with, the applications may be determined by officers under delegated powers.

Extensions of Time and adjournments (Regulations 11-13)

The Licensing Sub-Committee have a general discretion to extend the time limits contained in the
Regulations or adjourn hearings if this is considered to be necessary in the public interest. Proper
notice would have to be given of any extension of time or adjournment. Time cannot be extended
or hearings adjourned if this would result in a failure to comply with the timescales set out in the

Act.

13

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

The Hearing

Exclusions

Regulation 14 provides that all hearings must be held in public. The Licensing Sub-
Committee may however exclude the press and public (including the parties and their
representatives) from all or part of the hearing if they consider that the public interest in doing
so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in
public.

The Access to Information provisions of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 do
not apply to hearings before the Licensing Sub-Committee. The test for exclusion of the
press and public is not whether there is “exempt information” (as defined in Schedule 12A)
which is likely to be disclosed, but whether it is in the “public interest” that the hearing (or part
of the hearing) should be in private.

It is recommended that, as a general rule, all representations from the parties should be
heard in public unless there are exceptional circumstances. The overriding public interest
dictates that hearings should be conducted in a fair, open and transparent manner and
justice should be seen to be done. The Council’s constitution is also based on democratic
open government, accountability and public access to meetings. The parties should be given
the opportunity at the beginning of the hearing to make an application for a private hearing,
but they would have to establish a clear reason why this should override the public interest in
an open hearing. The fact that personal information or information relating to financial,
business or commercial interests would be disclosed would not, in itself, justify exclusion. An
application for exclusion of the press and public could be made, for example, where sensitive
information relating to individual children could be disclosed in relation to a policy issue
involving the protection of children from harm, or where there are criminal justice implications
involving representations made by the police. The final decision as to whether the press and
public should be excluded for all or part of the hearing on public policy grounds is a matter for
the Licensing Sub-Committee.

It is however recommended that, as a general rule, the press, public and the relevant parties
are all excluded from the meeting while the Licensing-Sub-committee deliberate and come to

Tudalen 7



13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

their decision on the grounds that this private debate is considered to be in the “public
interest”. Everyone should then be asked withdraw from the room, except for the Licensing
Officer, the Democratic Services Officer and the Head of Law and Standards or his
nominated representative. These three officers shall be entitled to remain, but only for the
purpose of offering advice as to procedure or any particular point of law and to record
decisions. They must not participate in the decision-making by the Licensing Sub-Committee.
Where it is more convenient, the Licensing Sub-Committee may withdraw to a private room
rather than require everyone else to withdraw from the meeting room.

If there are any further points of clarification required, then all of the parties and the public
should be allowed back into the meeting while these points of clarification are addressed.

Regulation 25 permits the Licensing Sub-Committee to exclude any person from the hearing
if they are behaving in a disruptive manner, either permanently or temporarily (permitting
them to return only if they comply with such conditions as may be specified). If one of the
parties is excluded on these grounds and not permitted to return, they are entitled to submit
to the Licensing Sub-Committee in writing any information which they would have been
entitled to give orally had they not been excluded from the meeting.

Representations

Any person or responsible authority may make written representations about an application
for a premises licence or certificate within a specified period, which is generally 28 working
days of the receipt of the application. Representations or requests for review will only be
relevant if they relate to the four licensing objectives. The applicant will be provided with
copies of all relevant representations received at the same time as the notice of hearing.

The written representations will also be referred to as background papers to the Report of the
Licensing Officer, which will be circulated to Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee and
made available to the press and public as soon as possible and, in any event, at least two
clear working days before the hearing.

Advice should therefore be given that, if any person responds to any notice or advertisement,
their letter of objection or support will be made available to the public, including personal data
(such as names and addresses) in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1988. If any
person objects to their name and address, or any other personal information, being made
public, then their representations will need to be redacted or anonymised before being
circulated (but this may affect the weight that the Licensing Sub-Committee attaches to their
representations).

Where relevant representations have been made and an application is to be determined at a
hearing, the applicant and those parties who have made representations have a right to
attend the hearing (subject to rights of exclusion) and may be assisted or represented at the
hearing by any person (whether or not that person is legally qualified) (Regulation 15).

13.10Regulation 16 provides that a party shall be entitled at the hearing to

= Give further information in response to a point upon which the Licensing authority has
given notice that it wants clarification

= Question any other party, if permission is given by the Licensing Sub-Committee

= Address the Licensing Sub-Committee

13.11Regulation 17 provides that Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee may question any

party or other person appearing at the hearing.

13.12In considering any application, representations or notice made by a party, the Licensing Sub-

Committee may take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in
support of their application, representations or notice, either before the hearing or, with the
consent of the parties, at the hearing. The Licensing Sub-Committee has discretion as to
whether to admit this documentary evidence but should, generally allow this to be presented

Tudalen 8



14

if it is relevant and material to the application, the representations or notice submitted and the
licensing objectives. This however should not be seen as an opportunity to introduce new
representations outside the statutory timescale. The parties should be advised to provide
any additional documentary evidence as soon as possible before the hearing and, wherever
possible, this should be circulated in advance to the Members of the Licensing Sub-
Committee and the other parties. The Sub-Committee will then decide at the hearing
whether or not this additional documentary evidence should be admitted and considered. If
admitted, the additional information will then be made available to the press and public at the
meeting. If the additional documentary evidence has not been produced before the hearing,
it can only be admitted with the consent of all the parties. If any other party objects to the
evidence being produced at the hearing, the Licensing Sub-Committee has no discretion to
admit it or take it into account.

Failure of parties to attend the hearing

If a party has informed the Council that he/she does not intend to attend or be represented at the
hearing, then the hearing may proceed in their absence. If a party, who has not given prior notice
of his/her intention not to attend the hearing, is absent from the hearing the Licensing Sub-
Committee may either adjourn the hearing or hold the hearing in the party’s absence. Where the
hearing proceeds in the absence of a party, the Licensing Sub-Committee must still consider the
written representations or notice submitted by that party and follow the same principles of decision-
making.

15

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

Procedure at the hearing

Subject to the provisions of the Regulations, the Licensing Sub-Committee has the discretion
to regulate their own proceedings and procedure to be followed at the hearing. The
proceedings should be kept as informal as possible although a logical and ordered approach
should be maintained in order to ensure a fair and impartial hearing. A suggested form of
procedure is attached however the Chair should make it clear that the Licensing Sub-
Committee are not totally inflexible and would be prepared to vary the order of proceedings if
this would facilitate the proper consideration of an application or notice.

Regulation 7(c) provides that parties should be informed of the procedure to be adopted at
the hearing when they are sent notice of the arrangements for the meeting. It is therefore
suggested that a copy of the written procedure is sent to the parties with the notice of the
hearing.

Regulation 22 requires the Licensing Sub-Committee to explain the procedure to the parties
at the beginning of the hearing and consider any request under Regulation 8(2) for
permission for another person to appear at the hearing (such permission not to be
unreasonably withheld). Prior notice should have been given if parties wish to call witnesses
or other persons to address the hearing. Provided that their evidence or representations are
relevant and material, permission should generally be allowed.

Regulation 23 provides that the hearing should take the form of a “discussion led by the
authority” and cross-examination should not be permitted unless the licensing committee
considers that this is required to enable them to consider the matter properly. Whilst parties
and their representatives should not be allowed to make the hearing too adversarial, it is
suggested that both parties should be allowed an equal opportunity to put questions to the
other party and their representatives/witnesses (under Regulation 16). A period of five
minutes each should be allowed for questions, with the Chair having discretion to disallow
any questions which are considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee to be irrelevant, hostile
or repetitive. Wherever possible, large groups of objectors should be encouraged to appoint
a single spokesperson to present their case, to save time and avoid unnecessary duplication.

Tudalen 9



15.5 Regulation 24 provides that the Licensing Sub-Committee must allow the parties an equal
maximum period of time in which to exercise their rights to put questions and address the
hearing. It is suggested that, as a general rule, a maximum time of 20 minutes should be
allowed for both parties, with 10 minutes for addressing the Sub-Committee, five minutes for
questioning and five minutes for summing up at the end. The Licensing Sub-Committee can
however extend time for both parties if this is necessary for the proper consideration of the
matter.

16 Site Visits

The Sub-Committee may, at its discretion, undertake a site visit of any premises that are the
subject of any application. The visit may take place either before the hearing, by arrangement with
the parties, or the Sub-Committee may adjourn the hearing at any time to visit the premises. Ifa
site visit is undertaken, it should be a fact-finding exercise only and no representations should be
heard from any party. Any questions should be addressed to licensing officer(s), wherever
possible, but if it is necessary to ask a question of any party, this should be done in the presence of
all the other parties.

17 Determination of applications

17.1 Normally, the licensing Sub-Committee must make its determination at the conclusion of the
hearing. In other cases the Sub-committee shall make its determination within five working
days. Where a hearing has been dispensed with, the decision must be made within 10
working days of the notice to dispense with the hearing.

17.2 The Council’'s Statement of Licensing policy provides that every decision of the Licensing
Sub-Committee shall be accompanied with reasons for that decision. A summary of the
decision shall be posted on the Council’'s website as soon as possible after the decision has
been made, where it will form part of the statutory licensing register.

17.3 Paragraph 24 provides that comprehensive reasons should be given and, on making findings
of fact in its reasons, the Licensing Sub-Committee should ensure that they address the
standard of proof and the burden of proof that they have adopted. The Licensing Sub-
Committee should also address the extent to which the decision has been made with regard
to its Statement of Licensing Policy and the Statutory Guidance issued under Section 182 of
the Act.

17.4 Regulation 28 requires the Council to notify the parties in writing of the determination of the
Licensing Sub-Committee and their rights of appeal. The Council is also required to send
notification of the determination to the Chief Officer of Police, where the police have not been
a party to the hearing. This notification must be sent within the period specified in the Act or,
if no period is prescribed, forthwith on making the determination.

18 Right of appeal

Any aggrieved party will have the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of being
notified of the decision.

19 Record of proceedings

Regulation 30 provides that the Council must keep a record of the hearing in a permanent and
intelligible form for a period of six years from the date of the determination or, where any appeal is
brought against the determination of the Licensing Sub-Committee, from the disposal of any
appeal. A verbatim note or transcript of the proceedings is not required, but the Minute recording
the decision must be sufficiently detailed so as to provide an accurate record of both the
proceedings and the decision taken, together with the reasons given and any conditions imposed.

Tudalen 10



20 Irregularities

Regulations 31-33 provide that any irregularities or clerical errors shall not invalidate any decision
or render a determination void and enables the Council to correct any error or cure any irregularity
as soon as possible.

Organisation of Cases for the Hearing

1 The hearings will normally take place at the Civic Centre, Newport at times to be agreed with
the Sub-Committee.

2 The agenda for the meetings of the Licensing-Sub-committee shall be agreed by the
Licensing Officer and the Senior Democratic Services officer after any necessary
consultation with the relevant Chair of the Licensing Sub-Committee. The officers shall
determine how many applications can be heard at each meeting and the order in which the
applications should be considered, taking into account the number of parties who will be
attending.

3 Hearings should be scheduled in accordance with the timescales prescribed by the
Regulations. In general a hearing must be held within 20 working days after the time has
expired for making representations.

4 Once the draft agenda has been agreed, the Senior Democratic Services Officer should send
out notice of the agenda to the Members, press and public in the usual way. Members
should immediately inform the Senior Democratic Services Officer if they consider they are
disqualified from hearing or they have an interest in any specific case.

5 At the same time, the Licensing Officer shall send notice of the hearing to the parties,

together with

= A copy of the procedure to be followed at the hearing

= Confirmation of the parties’ rights to be assisted or represented at the hearing (whether
or not that person is legally qualified)

= Confirmation that the parties will be allowed to address the Licensing Sub-Committee and
put questions to the other parties for a maximum of 20 minutes

= Confirmation that, if a party does not attend the hearing, the hearing would generally
proceed in his/her absence

= A note of any particular point on which the Licensing Sub-committee requires further
clarification.

= Copies of all relevant representations received

6 The parties should also be requested to notify the Council as soon as possible (and in any
event within the timescale prescribed by the Regulations) whether they intend to appear
and/or be represented at the hearing or whether they consider a hearing to be unnecessary.

7 If they intend to proceed with a hearing, they should be requested to give advance notice of
any application to adduce any further documentary evidence (which should preferably be
provided as soon as possible before the hearing) or request for any other person to appear
at the hearing. The request must contain details of the name of the witness and a brief
description of that person’s evidence.

8 The notice of hearing and supporting documents should be sent by second class post and,
except in the case of emergency applications or where the Regulations specify a shorter
period, at least 10 clear working day’s notice should be given. The Licensing Officer may
also send electronic copies by email or fax by agreement with the applicants or other party.

Tudalen 11



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

The Chair of the Licensing Sub-committee may meet with the Democratic Services Officer,
the Solicitor to the Licensing Sub-Committee and the Licensing Officer(s) presenting the
report in advance of the hearing to identify any issues where further clarification should be
requested from the parties. These issues will be notified to the parties by the Licensing
Officer to enable them to address these issues in their submissions at the hearing. During
this preliminary meeting and any pre-agenda meeting, no decisions shall be made and no
discussions shall be held regarding the substantive merits of the application or
representations.

The hearings shall be attended by a Solicitor, a Democratic Services Officer and the
Licensing Officer. The officers shall attend for the sole purpose of giving advice on law and
procedure and are not parties to the decision.

The role of the Solicitor is to provide legal advice in relation to the applications and
submissions.

The role of the Democratic Services Officer is to record the proceedings and the decisions of
the Sub-Committee and ensure efficient administration.

The Licensing Officer shall prepare a written Report for consideration by the Licensing Sub-
Committee, which should include

= A brief summary of the application

= A brief summary of the representations

= The relevant licensing objectives

= Relevant aspects of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and statutory Guidance
= Other background information (such as copies of letters)

The Licensing Officer's Report should be sent out as soon as possible and, in any event, no
later than 10 clear working days before the hearing, together with copies of relevant
documentary evidence submitted by the parties. Wherever possible, the Licensing Officer’s
Report should be sent out at the same time as the notice of hearing and supporting
documents, but this will not be reasonably practicable where there are a significant number
of applications to be determined. If additional documentary evidence is provided later by the
parties, it should be copied and sent to the other parties before the hearing, if reasonably
practicable.

After hearing all the representations and prior to retiring to make its decision, the Licensing
Sub-Committee may, if it wishes, seek the guidance of the Licensing Officer and/or Solicitor
on possible conditions that could be attached to any licence.

The Democratic Services Officer shall keep a record of the decisions taken and the Licensing
Officer shall send written confirmation of the decision to the relevant parties, together with
the reasons, any conditions and their rights of appeal.

Principles of Decision-Making

1

This note is intended to provide members of the Licensing Sub-committee with a guide to the
principles of decision-making. The licensing hearings are of a quasi-judicial nature and the
procedures are, therefore, markedly different to the usual arrangements for Committee
meetings.

It should be noted that the proceedings are governed by adjudication procedures and the
rules of natural justice will, therefore, apply. All the parties should be given a full and fair
hearing, which should be conducted in an open, transparent and accountable manner.

Members must, at all times, comply with the Council’s Member Code of Conduct.

Tudalen 12



All licensing applications must be considered on the basis of whether they promote the four
licensing objectives set out in the Act and incorporated in the Statement of Licensing Policy,
namely

= The prevention of crime and disorder

= Public safety

= The prevention of public nuisance

= The protection of children from harm

In reaching their decisions under the Act, the Licensing Sub-Committee must have regard to
all relevant considerations including (but not limited to)

= The relevant statutory provisions

Relevant Statutory Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act

The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy

The licensing objectives

The material facts based on the relevant evidence presented and representations
received

= The individual merits of each case

*  The public interest

The Licensing Sub-Committee must disregard any irrelevant considerations, including (but
not limited to) information or evidence which is not relevant to the application or to the
promotion of the licensing objectives. Members must also disregard any party political
considerations or decisions taken in political group meetings.

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee must act fairly, objectively and impartially
throughout. They must not show any bias or predetermination and must keep an open
mind on all applications until they have heard all the relevant representations and evidence.
Members must not prejudge any application, express any view on the merits of any
application, organise any support or opposition to any application, in advance of the
hearing. Any Member with a “closed mind” on any application would be disqualified from
sitting on the Licensing Sub-Committee which considers that application.

In the event of any licensing applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council or an
officer of the Council, the same rules and procedures shall apply. No account shall be
taken of the fact that the application is submitted by the Council or an officer and no favour
or consideration shall be shown in relation to the application. Any member involved in the
decision to apply for the licence shall be disqualified from sitting on the Licensing Sub-
Committee which considers the application.

Procedure to be Followed at The Hearing

1

Preliminaries and Opening remarks
At the commencement of the meeting, the Chair for the meeting shall be elected by simple
majority of members present.

The Chair of the Sub-Committee opens the meeting and welcomes those attending.
The Chair introduces the members and the officers present.
Apologies/declarations of interest

The Chair deals with any apologies for absence and declarations of interest. Any
substitution of members will be dealt with at this stage.

Tudalen 13



Introductions
The Chair invites the applicant, any other person and their representatives to introduce
themselves and indicate who will be speaking.

The Chair explains the procedures to be followed and the time allocated to each party and
asks if there are any questions. (The order of proceedings may be varied at the discretion of
the Sub-Committee where the parties have any particular preference of where this is
necessary for proper consideration). The proceedings will generally be conducted in public
unless it is in the public interest to hear cases in private. Any applications to exclude the
press and public should be dealt with at this stage.

Applications
The Chair will inform the parties whether their applications to have certain people attend the
hearing under Regulation 8(2) (eg witnesses) have been granted or refused.

The Chair will summarise the papers before the Licensing Sub-Committee and will confirm
that everyone has copies. Chair will ascertain whether any representations have been or are
now to be withdrawn. Licensing Sub-Committee will consider any requests for additional
documentary evidence or other information to be introduced by either party. (Note that
advance notification must be given, otherwise the additional information or evidence can only
be adduced at the hearing with the consent of all the parties and the agreement of the Sub-
Committee).

Chair is to identify any specific points about which the Licensing Sub-Committee have
requested clarification.

Report from Licensing Officer

The Licensing Officer presents the Report outlining

= The nature of the application

= Any relevant background information

= Relevant issues in relation to the promotion of the four licensing objectives

= Relevant representations received

= Any relevant policy issues, including the Statement of Licensing Policy and any statutory
Guidance

The Licensing Officer presenting the report will not make any recommendation regarding the
determination of the application, but will simply outline the relevant considerations which the
Licensing Sub-Committee will need to take into account when arriving at their decision. (It
should be noted if the Licensing Authority wishes to make representation regarding
application as a relevant authority under the Licensing Act 2003 a further Licensing Officer
will be required to attend the committee and Act as a relevant authority).

The Members will be able to ask questions of the Licensing Officer(s) presenting the report to
clarify any issues arising out of the Report.

The Applicant’s case

(a) The Applicant/representative to address the Sub-Committee and to call any witnesses
where permission has been granted (maximum period of 10 minutes). Parties may give
their evidence by making a statement or by being questioned by their representative.

(b)  The objectors/representatives shall be allowed to put questions to the applicant/
representative and any witnesses (maximum five minutes).

(c) The members of the Licensing Sub-committee to put questions to the applicant/
representative and any witnesses

Tudalen 14



10

11

The Objector(s) case

(a) The Objectors/representatives to address the Sub-Committee and to call any
witnesses, where permission has been granted (maximum period of 10 minutes).
(The responsible authorities eg Police, Fire Authority, followed by any other person in
the order in which they submitted their written representations. Where a large group
have objected, they should be encouraged to appoint a single spokesperson in order to
save time and avoid repetition).

(b) The applicant/representative shall be allowed to put questions to the objectors/
representatives and any witnesses, (maximum five minutes).

(c) The members of the Licensing Sub-committee to put questions to the objectors/
representatives and any witnesses.

Closing Statements
(a) Objectors or their representative(s) to sum up (maximum of five minutes).
(In the order in which they addressed the Sub-Committee, if more than one).

(b)  Applicant or representative to sum up (maximum of five minutes).
(At this stage the applicant/representative should indicate whether, in the light of the
representations made, they wish to amend their application or offer any conditions to
overcome the objections and/or promote the licensing objectives).

Decision
If there are no further matters to be resolved, the Chair will ask all the parties if they are
satisfied that they have had a fair hearing and will then close the proceedings.

The Sub-committee to consider whether it is in the public interest that they deliberate in
private or whether this part of the hearing should continue to take place in public.

Pass resolution to exclude the press and public (including the parties and their
representatives) pursuant to Regulation 14(2) during this part of the hearing, while the Sub-
Committee discusses its decision. Everyone should then be asked withdraw from the room,
except the Licensing Officer(s) presenting the report, the Democratic Services Officer and
the Head of Law and Standards or his nominated representative(s). These officers shall be
entitled to remain but only for the purpose of offering advice as to procedure or any particular
point of law. The Sub-Committee may withdraw into a private room to do this

The Members of the Sub-Committee will deliberate and come to their decision. The reasons
for the decision, the material findings of fact and any conditions will be agreed and recorded
in writing by the Chair. In the event of any disagreement, any matter under consideration
shall be determined by a simple majority of votes cast.

The hearing will then resume in public. The Chair will announce the decision and give the
reasons for that decision, any material findings of fact, any licence conditions that are to be
imposed and the licensing objectives that they relate to (unless, where permitted by the
regulations, the decision is to be communicated at a later time).

Repeat process for each hearing

Tudalen 15



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



Eitem Agenda 4

R %’%!’i‘%‘!&iﬁ"“
eporl FE—

Licensing Sub Committee Report.

Part 1

Date: 4 February 2020

Subject Review of Premises Licence under Section 51 Licensing Act
2003, Sanremo, 131 Caerleon Road, Newport, NP19 7BZ

Purpose The consideration and decision in respect of a review application under Licensing Act
2003.

Author Steve Pontin (Licensing Officer)
Ward St Julians

Summary An application for a review of the premises licence was made by Home Office
Immigration Enforcement on 20t December 2019 on the basis that the premises is
undermining the prevention of crime and disorder.

Proposal To make a decision on the application to review the Premises Licence issued in respect
of Sanremo, 131 Caerleon Road, Newport, NP19 7BZ.

Action by Head of Law and Regulation
Timetable Statutory Consultation Period

Signed

Tudalen 17



1. Review Application

A review application under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 was received on the 20t December
2019 from Home Office Immigration Enforcement department to review the Premises Licence issued
in respect of Sanremo, 131 Caerleon Road, Newport, NP19 7BZ.

The application for review relates to the following Licensing objective(s):
The prevention of crime and disorder
A copy of the review paperwork and supporting documents can be found in Appendix A of this report.

The application was received by the Licensing Authority on 20" December 2019 and in accordance
with section 51(3)(a) of the Licensing Act 2003 a copy of the application was served on the holder of
the Premises Licence and on all Responsible Authorities.

Following receipt of the application, the Licensing Authority advertised the application in accordance
with the regulations of the Act, thereby inviting representations to be made by interested parties. Any
representation in respect of this application made by a responsible authority or an interested party had
to be received by the Licensing Authority by 17t January 2020.

2. Licensable Activities

The current premises licence holder is:

Mr Ardian Matmuja of 131 Caerleon Road, Newport, NP19 7BZ.
The Premises Licence relates to:

Sale by retail of Alcohol

Monday to Thursday inclusive 12:00 - 14:30
Monday to Thursday inclusive 18:00 - 23:30
Friday 18:00 - 23:30

Saturday 12:00 - 14:30

Saturday 18:00 - 23:30

Sunday 18:00 - 23:30

Playing of Recorded Music

Monday to Thursday inclusive 12:00 - 14:30
Monday to Thursday inclusive 18:00 - 23:30
Friday 18:00 - 23:30

Saturday 12:00 - 14:30

Saturday 18:00 - 23:30

Sunday 18:00 - 23:30

Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Sunday inclusive 23:00 - Midnight

A copy of the premises licence can be found in Appendix B of this report
3. Representations

The Licensing Authority received no further representations during the consultation period from either
a Responsible Authority or “Other person”

Tudalen 18



4. Background/Premises Licence History

The Premises was formerly an Indian restaurant and was converted to an Italian restaurant when the
current premises licence holder, Mr Matmuija, transferred the premises licence in March 2018. The
premises is located at 131 Caerleon Road, Newport, NP19 7BZ and is on a stretch of Caerleon Road
that has a mixture of both business and residential properties. The location of the premises can be
found in Appendix C of this report; The Licensing Authority has received no complaints regarding the
premises or has any outstanding issues.

5. Legal Considerations, Guidance, Policy Consideration.

The decision must be taken following consideration of the representation received with a view to
promoting the licensing objectives which are:

Prevention of crime and disorder
Public Safety

Prevention of Public Nuisance
Protection of Children from Harm

In each case the Sub-Committee may make the following determination

To modify the conditions of the Premises licence

To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the premises licence
To remove the designated premises supervisor from the licence

To suspend the premises license for a period not exceeding 3 months
To revoke the premises licence

Take No Action in respect of the Premises Licence.

6. Guidance
Paragraph 9.5 of the Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 states:

“The Immigration Act 2016 made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in respect of premises
licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment with effect from 6 April 2017. In effect this conveys
the role of responsible authority to Home Office Immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers
on the Secretary of State’s behalf. When Immigration Enforcement exercises its powers as a
responsible authority it will do so in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective
because it is concerned with the prevention of illegal working or immigration offences more broadly”.

Paragraph 2.6 of the guidance clearly stipulates:

“The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including illegal working on
licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as
well as the police, in respect of these matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for
the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder
to undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a
copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are retained at the licensed premises”.

Paragraph 11.19 of the guidance states:

“Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is

Tudalen 19



appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

» modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions or any alteration
or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring
door supervisors at particular times;

* exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude the performance
of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the incidental live and recorded music
exemption);

* remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that the problems
are the result of poor management;

« suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
* revoke the licence.”

Paragraphs 11.25 to 11.28 of the guidance cover the review process in further
depth:-

“11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not part of
criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations giving rise to a review
of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of any criminal proceedings. Some
reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any
case, it is for the licensing authority to determine whether the problems associated with the alleged
crimes are taking place on the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where
a review follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go beyond
any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed evidence before them.

11.26 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises have
been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should be taken in
connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective.

It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated problems may be taking place or
have taken place despite the best efforts of the licence holder and the staff working at the premises
and despite full compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the
licensing authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The
licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives and
the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not those of the individual
licence holder.

11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises which
should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed premises....

* For employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;

11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement)
and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures
effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority
determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being used
to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should be
seriously considered.”

Tudalen 20



7. Issues for discussion

e The content of the application made by Home Office Immigration Enforcement for a review of the
Premises Licence.
¢ Any evidence and mitigation provided by Licence Holder

8. Financial Summary

= The costs and financial implications: You must discuss financial implications with the Head of
Finance and the report must identify from where your proposals will be funded, together with any
impact on budgets or any opportunity costs

Year 2 Year 3 Notes

including budgets heads affected

Year 1
(Current)
£ £ £ £

Ongoing

Costs
(Income)
Net Costs
(Savings)
Net Impact
on Budget

9. Risks

It is important to identify and manage any project or scheme’s exposure to risk and have in place
controls to deal with those risks.

In this section, you should consider the key risks facing the proposals in your report, particularly those
which would impact on delivery or sustainability of the project of projected outcomes. You will need to
include details of how risks will be managed. If your proposals rely on short or medium term grant aid
or funding streams you will need to outline your exit or continuation policy here.

You will need to complete the following Risk table

Risk Impact of | Probability | What is the Council doing or | Who is
Risk if it of risk what has it done to avoid the | responsible for
occurs® occurring risk or reduce its effect dealing with the
(H/M/L) (H/M/L) risk?
Making a High Low The Committee will consult Chairperson.
unlawful with the Legal Officer and Legal Officer.
decision Licensing Officer to
determine if any decision is
lawful and proportionate.
Members training.
The licensing | Medium Low If the Committee wishes to Chairperson.
committee depart from the Councils Legal Officer.
departing from policy they must give good
the licensing reason for this and obtain
policy. advice from the Legal Officer

when departing from the
Policies to ensure the
decision is lawful.
Members training.

Tudalen 21




The applicant | High Low A Licensing Committee Democratic
does not have procedure should be followed | Service Officer.
a fair hearing by the committee. Chairperson.
The Legal Officer alongside Legal Officer.
the Democratic Service
Officer will advise the
committee if at any stage an
unfair hearing is taking place.
Members training.

* Taking account of proposed mitigation measures
10. Links to Council Policies and Priorities

This report has been prepared in accordance with The Licensing Act 2003 and with regard to Newport
City Council Statement of Licensing Policies 2015.

Tudalen 22



APPENDIX A

Application for Review of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003
From the Home Office Immigration.

Licensing Authority: NMewpart City Council
Address: infofilnewport gov.sk

Our Reference: ARS

Application for the review of a promises licence or cluly premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing ihis form please read the guidnncs notes a1 the =nd of the form,

Lf you are completng this form by hand please write legibly in block capials. In all cases ensure
that your answers are mside the boxes and written m black ink. Use ndditional sheets if necessary.
You may wish o keep a copy of the completed form for your necacds.

apply for the review of o premises licence ander section 51 / apply for the review of & club
premises certificate undier section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below

Fart 1 = Fremises or club premises details
Poatal addreas of miﬂar 'if:u':mu.. ordnance survey map reference or descripiion I

Sanremo Italian Restaurant,

L3l - 133 Caerloon Foad

| Poat tawn Post code (if known)
Mewpaort MPI% THBZE

MName of premises licence holder or club holding clab premises certificate (if known)

hir Ardian Matmuaja

Mumber of premises licence or club premises certificate (if knowmn)

Part } Appleant detalls

[ am
Please tick " yes

|]--!.r|. iud.'u'.-"n-d.unl_ I:I{u.l_-.r ar busmess which 1= not a responsihle

autharity [pleass read guidance node 1, and complete [A) (I |
ar {B) below)
2} & responsible authority (please complers {(C) bedow) [ ]

Tudalen 23



2} a member of the club to which this application relates

(please complele (A) below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in 25 applicable)
Please tick ¥ yes

Mr [ s [ Miss ] s J Oither title
{for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please bick ¥ yes
1 am I8 vears odd or over D

Current postal
address if

different from
premises
nalad ress

Post town Past Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
{optianal)

(B} DETAILS OF OTHER APPFLICANT

Mame and address

Telephone rumber (if any)

E-mail addresa (optional)

Tudalen 24




{C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Homa Office
Immigration Enforcement
Alcohaol Licensing Team
Lunar Housea

4Gn Waellesley Rioad

roydon
CR9 2BY

Telephane number [if any)

E-mail address (optional)
LE. Alcoholreviewsi@bomeoffice gov,uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objectived{s)

Plenss tick one or more boxes
1} the prevention of crime and disorder

2) public safisry O
3) the preveation of public puisance E
4) the protection of children from harm

| Please state the ground(s) far review [please read guidance note 2)

! W have grounds that tbe license holder has failed to meet the licensing ohjeclives of preventicn
af crime and disorder, as illegal working has been sdentified at these premises.

| Hection 36 and Schedule 4 of the Immigration Act 2016 (the 2016 Act) amended the Licensing
Act 2003 {the 2003 Act) to introduce immigration safegusrds m respect of licensing applications

| made in England and Wales on or after & April 2017, The infention is to prevent illegal warking in

| premises licensad for the sale of alcohol or late-night refreshment.

The Home Secretary (in practice Home Office (Immdgratien Enforcement)) was addad to the list
of Responsible Auwtbonties (KA} in the licensing regime, which requires Home Office
(lmmigration Enforcement) 1o receive premises licence applications (except regulated
enterisinment ealy licences and applications to vary 8 Designated Premises Supervisor (FS]),
acd 1n some limifed circometances personal licence applications, In carrying owt the role of
responsible authority, Home Office (Immipration Enforcement) is pesmitted to make relevand
representations and objections to tlve grant of a licence or request @ review of an existing licence &
a responsible suthanty where there is concern that & lcence and related licensable activity is
prejudicial 1o the prevention of immigration eoime incleding illepal working

Tudalen 25




Please provide as much information as possible to suppert the application (please resd
gaidance note 5}

O THURSDRAY 6ith JUNE 2009, an isvelligence-bod Enforcement visit was condected to
“SAMREMO ITALLAN RESTAURANMT, 131-133 CAERLEON ROAD, NEWPORT, NP2
TEZ". a5 we had received an allegation that there wens personis) being employed illegally at the
addreas.

The beam enbered the premises at approximately 2032 boars under Section 179 of The Licensing
Act 2003 as amended, as Mewpart Licensing officers had confirmed the premises keld a leence o
sell alcobol.

O eniering the restaurant, an employes present in the kitchen area atemipied to leave the
premises from e rear. He was ammested immediately and confirmed to be illegally present in the
United Kingdom. Subsequently, two addiibonsl employecs were also found io be illegally present
inn the Urdted Kingdom with no permission to waork, A fourth member of azafl fled the scene prior
to his details heing obtained. A thoreugh search of the premisess and the swmounding area by
Police falled 1o find him, He could have potentially been an additional Immigration offender

I total, 3 persons were arrested, all 3 denied being employed &1 the restaurant, however, thers
were po ather employees present and those arrested had recently finished serving a table of
approximebely B costomers. All were conveyed 1o local custady.

AL 22073 bours, the mohile telephone mumber provided by Mewpon Licensing for the Premises
License holder, Mr Ardian MATMUJA was called, However, the permson who answered denled
heing Ardian MATRLIA or having any lnk o SANREMO ITALLAN RESTAURANT. In fact,
when asked o clarify their identity, they prompely ended the c2ll and the number was then
unchtainable oo sabsequent sitempts made.

Consequently, il was not possible to ask questions regardimg tlegal working.

Mewport Licensing Officers were informed and & sisit was made by them oo the premises on
Bomdey- 10eh JUNE 2 0159 - Mr ARDLAN MATMUTA was present and confinmed be-remained the
Premises License holder and confirmed his mobale number 1o be that used on the evening on Gth
JUNE 2019 to contect him.

A Referral Motice for potential Civil Penalty action was sent by registened peat 1o the basiness
address on IENSS.

The premises has faibed to meet tbe Heetaing objective of ‘the prevention of crime and disorder”
&1 hey were employing 3 (possibly 4] persons's illegally at the tme of the visit Also, the
conditions of the Licence were noi being adhered to as the Premises Licence holder could not be
contacted &t the time of oar visit,

Tudalen 26



Flease tick «
Yes

# | heve sent copies of this form and enclosares o the responsible authesities =
andl the premises licence helder or club holding the club premises certificaie,
a8 Bppropriste

# | understand that if | do not comply with the shove requirements my =
application will be rejecied

I'T 15 AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 1588 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONMNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION, THOSE
W MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY COMNYICTION
T A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 5 — Sipnamures (please read puidance nobe 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
gusiance node B). IF sigming on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Capacity  Responsible Aabhomify. oo i e e

Comtact name {where not previoushy given) and postal address for correspondence
assnciated with this application (please read gusdance poge 6)

Alcohol Licensing Team
Lunar House
40 Wellesley Road

Past town Post Code
Croydon CRY 2IBY
Teblephone mamber (i any)

If vom would prefer us tn correspond with youw asing an e-mail sddress vour c-mail p.ddrr-n-
loptianal) [E, Alcoholreviewsiahomesifice gov.uk

Notes for Guidanee

1. A responsthle authority includes the local police, fire and rescoe suthoriny and odlser
stahsiory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local ares,

2. The ground{s) for review must be based om ane of the beensing olgectives,

3. Pleaae list any additionel infermation or demails for example dates of problems which ane
incloded in the groands for review 1f avaalable.

4. The application form must be sigaed.

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authoroty to do so.

& This & the sddrese which we chall uge to correspond with you about this application.

Tudalen 27



FPlease tick " ves
Have you made an application lor review relating o the O
premmises before

I yes plesse siaie the date of that application [y Moath l“-"“‘.‘.r |

TF you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
anid when you made them

Tudalen 28




e

.......
IIIII

i E-.E'_;..I

B
o
Gl

Home Office

Premises Licence
Review

Mr Ardian Matmuja

Sanremo Italian Restaurant
131-133, Caerleon Road
Newport

Wales

NP19 7TBZ

Tudalen 29



Contents

e LT (oLl = L1 P U i

Outeome Sought ... oo s 8
Immigration OfBnCES............cuvee e s p——
Steps to Avoid the Employmant of an lllegal Worker ..o 11
Relevancedrrelevance of a Civil Panalty or Proseculion ... 12
Appendix A — Right to Work checks...........coeiiiiii 133
General AdVice ..o R S e 133
Checking the Documents........ PSP e 133

If the job applicant can’t show their documents....... .. 144
Acceptable Dotuments ... SR S, o144
Appendix.B - Statutory Guidance & CaslaW. .. msmssms s e i snes vessessssne. 155
Statutory Guidance (s182 LA 2003) and the Authority's Licensing Policy....... 155

L T I RS 177
Appendix C — Supporing EVIdence ... 211

Tudalen 30



Outline of the Circumstances leading
to the Review Application

Summary

11

1.2

13

1.4

1.5

16

1.7

On Thursday 6" June 2019 at approximately 20:32 an intelligence-led
enforcement visit was made to SANREMO ITALIAN RESTAURANT, 131-
133, CAERLEON ROAD, NEWPORT, NP19 7TBZ, by Immigration
Compliance & Enforcement (ICE) officers, as they had received an
allegation that there were person(s) being employed illegally at the
address.

During the visit a total of 3 persons were amrested, all 3 denied being
employed at the restaurant however, there were no other employees
present and those armested had recantly finished serving a table of
approximately 8 customers.

At 22:03 the Officer in Charge (OIC) called the mobile telephone number
provided by Newport Licensing for the Premises License holder, Mr Ardian
MATMUJA. However, the person that answered denied being Ardian
MATMUJA or having any links to SANREMO ITALIAN RESTAURANT. In
fact, when asked to clarify their identity, they promptly ended the call and
the number was then unobtainable on subsequent attempts made,
Consequently, it was not possible to ask questions regarding illegal
waorking.

Newport Licensing Officers were informed, and a visit was made by them to
the premises on Monday 101 June 2019. Mr ARDIAN MATMUJA was
presant and confirmed he remained the Premises Licence holder and
confirmed his maobile number to be that used on the evening of 8" June
2018 to contact him.

A Referral Notice for potential Civil Penalty action was sent by registerad
post to the business address on 18/06/2019.

Succeeding parts of this application explore relevant legislation and the
statutory guidance and Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) ask the
sub-committee to revoke the premises licence as a deterrent to others and
the management/owner of this premises in particular.

Copies of all the witness statements or pocket notebook (FNB) entries
made by relevant immigration officers are appended; should the sub-
committee wish to read these.

Tudalen 31



Occurrence

1.8

18

1.10

1.11

On Thursday 6™ June 2019 at approximately 20:32 an intelligence-led
enforcement visit was made to SANREMO ITALIAN RESTAURANT, 131-
133, CAERLEON ROAD, NEWPORT, NP18 TBZ, by Immigration
Compliance & Enforcement (ICE) officers, as we had received an allegation
that there were parson(s) being employed illegally at the address.

The operation was conducted by a number of Immigration Compliance &
Enforcement (ICE) officers. The team was led by Officer in Chﬂie IDIE}

B in company with Chief Immigration Officer (CIO) and
Immigration Officers {ID'siand and Assistant

Immigration Officer (AIO)

Entry to the premises was gained under Section 179 of the Licensing Act
2003 as amended, as Mewport Licensing officers had confirmed the
premises held a licence to sell alcohol.

On entering the restaurant, an employes present in the kitchen area
attempted to leave the premisas from the rear. He was amested
immediately and confirmed to be illegally present in the United Kingdom.
Subsequently, two additional employees were also found to be illegally
present in the United Kingdom with no permission to work. A forth member
of staff fled the scene prior to his details being obtained. A thorough search
of the premises and the surrounding area by Police failed to find him. He
could have potentially been an additional Immigration offender.

Tudalen 32



112

113

IO I conducted the following interview in [l vsing BIG

WORD INTREPETER.

The interview proceeded as follows:
“{Jw long have you been working here?
: Working in car wash down in London but today is my

first day, working on car wash was very hard.
10 . What is your job role/what are your duties?
: 1 was just learning things today and preps as today is

my first day.

- What days/ours do you work each week?
: | don't know how many as this is my first day.
. Who gave you this job (name and role in business)?

Friend of friznd, | don't know name.

Who tells you what days'hours to work?

| didn't talk about hours as this was trial.

Who tells you what tasks/duties to do each day?

. | don't know the namea of the person; the person is not

How are you paid (money, accommodation, food?)

: Not getting paid.

. How are you paid {money, accommodation, food?)

: Boss said he is trying to get him accommodation.
: What name does the employer know you as?

Diﬂ you show documents before being offered the job? If
50, what?

_: I didn't give any documentation, | just came and asked

can | wark and have a try.
10 . Does your employer know you're not allowed to work in the
UK?

: Mo, he didn't know,
L8] - Whao else works hara?

Tudalen 33



1.14 10 [ conducted the following interview in English.

1.15 The interview proceeded as follows:

How long have you been working hera?

Just today,

What is your job rolefwhat are your duties?

- Front of house,

What days/hours do you work each week?

- Don't know.,

Why are you working here today, what's the reason.
. Favour for a friend, they called me.

What was the name of the person that called you?
- | don't want to give his name.

Whao gave you this job (name and role in business).
- Don't want to give his name.

Who tells you what tasks/duties to do each day.

- Don't want to tell you his name.,

How are you paid (money, accommadation, food)?
. Cash

if money, how much and how do you receive it?

. Don't know he might not pay me at all,

. Do you pay income tax or have a National Insurance Card?
- Mo

. Where did you seep last night?

: Home.

. What name does the employer know you as?

: Did you show documents before being offered the job? If

- - Mone,
‘nas your employer know you're not allowed to work in the
- - Don't know,
(9] - Who else works here?
: | have no idea,

Tudalen 34



116 AIC [ conducted the following interview in English.

117 The interview proceaeded as follows:

AlO . How long have you been working here?
I don't work here, | was visiting friends to play football,

AlD . How long have you been working here?
- I'm not working hera,

Chacks on Home Office records were conducted confirming that [l

I :=e born [ has no permission to work in the
LK.

Reasons for Review

21

2.2

2.3

Whether by negligence or wilful blindness illegal workers were engaged in
activity on the premises, yet it is a simple process for an employer to
ascertain what documents they should check before a person is allowed to
work. It is an offence to work when a person is dizsqualified to do so, and
such an offence can only be committed with the co-operation of a premises
licence holder or its agents. It is also an offence to employ an illegal worker
whera thera is reason to believe this is the case.

The case of East Lindsay District Council v Hanif {see8.11) determined that
in such circumstances, even without a prosecution, the crime prevention
objective is engaged. The statutory Guidance issued under the Licensing
Act provides that certain criminal activity (in particular employing illegal
workers) should be treated particularly seriously and it is envisaged that the
police will use the review procedures effectively to dater such activities and
crime.

Home Office {Immigration Enforcement) submits that for commercial
reasons those engaged in the management of the premises employed
illegal workers and a warning or other activity falling short of are view is in
appropriate; this is why Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) has
proceeded straight to review.

Tudalen 35



31

32

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.8

37

Outcome Sought

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) asks that the premises licence is
revoked. Merely remedying the existing situation (for instance by the
imposition of additional conditions or a suspension) is insufficient to act as
a deterrent to the licence holder and other premises’ licence holders from
engaging in criminal activity by employing illegal workers and facilitating
disqualified immigrants to work illegally.

This submission and appended documents provide the licensing
subcommittee with background arguments and information pertinent to that
contention. These provide the sub-committee with a sound and defensible
rationale as to why it should revoke the licence.

It is in such circumstances as this review application that a respondent may
suggest that conditions are imposed which would prevent a recccurrence of
the employment of illegal workers in the future; an argument that the
subcommittee should take remedial and not punitive action,

However, since 2006 (with the introduction of the Immigration, Asylum and
Mationality Act 2006) employers have had a duty to conduct checks to
ensure employees and potential employees are not disqualified from
working. Only by completing the required checks and maintaining records
of such checks can an employer demonstrate a ‘statutory excuse’ and
evade liability for a civil penalty issued by Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement). In order to protect themselves, reputable employers have
been conducting these checks since 1996 when it first became a criminal
offence to employ illegal workers,

The 2006 Act already imposes duties and respansibilities on a company or
individual seeking to employ a person—whether in the licensed trade or
otherwise - to conduct right to work checks

In seeking revocation, Home Office (Immigration Enfercement) has
considered and rejected conditions as an alternative, in part because this is
specifically addressed paragraph 1.16 of the Guidance, viz: *(...) Licence
conditions should naot duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties,
or responsibilities placed on the employer (my emphasis) by other
legislation”.

Conditions requiring an employer (or its agent) to undertake checks that are
already mandated and where advice is readily available and clearly set out
for employers, keep copies of documentation and to restrict employment
until these checks are made etc, replicate the requirements of the 2006 Act
and should be discounted.

Tudalen 36



3.8

3.8

3.10

3.1

3.12

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) contends that a licence holder who
has himself or through his agents negligently or deliberately failed to
conduct right to work checks which have been a requirement since 2008
should not be afforded an opportunity to do so until caught and then merely
be asked to do what they should have been doing already. Deterrence and
not mere remady is appropriate and is supported by case law (as set out
within section B of this submission).

Respondents who fail to convince a subcommittee that the imposition of
conditions to undertake proper right to work checks is a suitable alternative
to a deterrent outcome often point to the option of suspension of a licence,
pointing out that this may be a suitable punitive response instead which will
deter others.

Often this will include claims that the business has 'learnt its lesson’ and
that since its eriminal activity has been discovered it has reconsidered its
position, brought in new proceduras, ‘parachuted in' consultants and new
managers elc. On occasion it is hinted that the respondent will "accept’ a
suspension as an alternative to revocation, assuaging an authority's
concern that an appeal may otherwise be launched. This is not a deterrent -
a suspension merely warns other potential perpetrators that they may trade
illegally until caught and then suffer only a brief hiatus in carrying out
licensable activity before continuing with it. The risk of being caught is low
so the consequences of being caught must be stiff in order to qualify as
deterrance.

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) would counter such claims and
point to the continuing changes made to both immigration law and the
Guidance (paragraphs 11 .26 — 11 .28) which point to a requirement to
send a clear message to potential illegal immigrants that UK authorities will
do all they can to prevent them finding illegal employment and a similar
message to employers that those employing illegal workers will face severe
disruption and penalties. There are simple processes (set out in section 5
of this submission) to avoid the hire of ilegal workers and the legislative
thrust is in avoiding the occurrence in the first place—not remedying the
situation once discovered.

If it were not for criminally minded or complicit employers; illegal workers
would not be able to obtain a seitled lifestyle and deprive legitimate
workers of employment. The use of illegal labour provides an unfair
competitive edge and deprives the UK economy of tax revenue. lllegal
workers are often paid below the minimum wage (itself an offence) and
Mational Insurance payments are not paid. The main draw for illegal
immigration is work and low-skilled migrants are increasingly vulnerable to
exploitation by criminal enterprises; finding themselves in appalling
accommodation and toiling in peor working conditions for long hours for
little remuneration.

Tudalen 37



3.13

A firm response to this criminal behaviour is required to ensure that the
licence holder andfor its agents are not allowed to repeat the exercise and
in particular, in tha interasts of the wider community to support responsible
businesses and the jobs of both UK citizens and lawful migrants. It is also
required to act as a deterrent to others who would otherwise seek to seek
an unfair competitive advantage, exploit workers and deny work to the
local community, evade the payment of income tax and{unlawfully) inflate
their profits to the expense of others.

Immigration Offences

3.14

315

3.16

317

3.18

lllegal workers are those subject to immigration control who either do not
have leave to enter or remain in the UK, or who are in breach of a
condition preventing them taking up the work in guestion. It is an
employer's responsibility to be aware of their obligations and ensure they
understand the immigration landscape to avoid the risk of prosecution, the
imposition of a civil penalty or their vocation/suspension of their premises
licence.

Since 1996 it has been unlawful to employ a person who is disqualified
from employment because of their immigration status. A statutory excuse
exists where the employer can demonstrate they correctly carried out
document checks, i.e. that they were duped by fake or forged documents.

The Immigration Act 2016 came into force in July 2016 and its explanatory
notes state that “these offences were broadened to capture, in particular,
employers who deliberately did not undertake right to work checks in order
that they could not have the specific intent required to ‘knowingly' employ
an illegal worker”.

Since 2016 an employar may be prosecuted not anly if they knew their
employee was disqualified from working but also if they had reasonable
cause to believe that an employee did not have the right to work: what
might be described as wilful ignorance where either no documents are
requested, or none are presented despite a request. This means an
offence is committed when an employer ‘ought to have known' the person
did not have the right to work.

Since 2016 it has also been an offence to work when disqualified from
doing so. It is obvious that without a negligent or wilfully ignorant
amployer, an illegal worker cannot work. Such an employer facilitates a
criminal offence and Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) highlights
this as relevant irrespective of whether a civil penalty is imposed, or a
prosecution launched for employing an illegal worker.

Tudalen 38



3.19  Inthis context, under section 3(1)(CNi) Immigration Act 1971 (as amended
by the 2016 Act) restrictions are not limited simply to employment {i.e.
paid work) but now includes all work.

3.20 Thus, an individual with ne right to work in the UK commits offences if they
undertake paid or unpaid work, paid or unpaid work placemants
undertaken as part of a course etc, are self~-employed or engage in
business or professional aclivity. For instance, undertaking an unpaid
work trial or working in exchange for a nonmonetary reward (such as
board and lodging) is working illegally and is a criminal offence committed
by the worker and facilitated by the ‘employer.

Steps to Avoid the Employment of an lllegal Worker

3.21  ltis a straightforward process for any employer, no matter how small, to
prevent themselves employing an illegal worker. If an employer has failed
to take even the most basic steps then Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) contends they have chosen to remain ignorant of the
immigration status of their workforce and no amount of potential imposed
conditions ia sufficient, in our opinion, to avoid the legitimacy of revocation
in proving a deterrent to others to the employment of illegal workers,

3.22  The Home Office has made checklists widely available which sat out what
a responsible employer should ask for ahead of employing any person in
order to demonstrate ‘due diligence’ and avoid liability for inadvertently
employing an illegal worker,

3.23  Since April 2017 these checklists have been embedded in the statutory
applications for personal licences and premises licences, the transfer of
premises licences and designated premises supervisor variations.

3.24  The first 4 "hits’ on a Google search for "right to work™ are links to
employer checklists and information on the GOV.UK website.

3.25  The first link (hitps:/f'www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work) details
general advice, checking the documents, taking a copy of the documents,
what if the job applicant can't show their documents and provides detalls
of an employers’ telephone helpline. This page has a direct link to what
documents are acceptable proofs of a right to work in the UK and also
allows an employer to fill out an online enquiry about a named individual
they are considering offering employment to.

3.26 Appendix A sets the abave out in some datail.

Tudalen 39



Relevancelirrelevance of a Civil Penalty or Prosecution

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.3

3.32

An employer found to have ‘employed’ an illegal worker may, dependent on
culpability and the evidence available, be issued with a civil penalty or
prosacuted or indeed neither,

Where an illegal worker is detected a civil penalty maybe issued against the
employer in accordance with the Home Office Code of Practice on
Preventing Illegal Working (May 2014). In the case of a civil penalty the
balance of probabilities test applies where as a prosecution requires a
higher burden of proof.

However, to issue a civil penalty under section 15 Immigration, Asylum and
Mationality Act 2006 the Home Office Code of Practice requires some proof
that not only was an illegal worker working at the premises, but they were
‘employed’, Usually this is taken as meaning the illegal worker was under a
contract of sarvice or apprenticeship, whether express or implied and
whether oral or written.

But where an employee has not bothered with the basics of return to work
checks, placed an employee on 'the books', paid the minimum wage or paid
employer national insurance contributions - it becomes difficult to 'prove’ the
employment statement where the only evidence maybe the word of an
ilegal worker who has since been detained or who has ‘moved on'.

In such cases where paid employment cannot be demonstrated, a civil
penalty may not be issued even where the premises licence holder or his
agent has faciltated a disqualified person committing an offence under
section 24B Immigration Act 1971 (as amended by Immigration Act 2016) of

wiorking illegally.

This doas not however prevent the crime prevention objective being
engaged with as the premises licence holder has none the less facilitated a
criminal offence taking place and the lack of checks suggests that in the
past (and is likely in the future) has employed illegal workers. In drawing its
conclusion, the subcommittee is entitled to exercise common sense and its
own judgment based on the life experience so fits members. The East
Lindsey case (see section B) provides that action (revocation) to pravent
what is likely to happen in the future is legitimate.

Tudalen 40



Appendix A — Right to Work checks

The first 4 'hits' on a Google search for “right to work” are links to employer check
lists and information on the GOV.UK website.

The second link is to the Home Office document; "An Employer's Guide to Right to
Work Checks" (published 16" May 2014 last updated 16" August 2017).

Anather link provides a site (https:/’www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-
employment stalus) which guides an employer through the process AND allows an
employer lo make an online submission to the Home Office to chack if the
proposed employes is prohibited from working as well as providing a telephone
helpline.

Specifically, the first link (https://www.gov.uk/chack-job-applicant-right-to-work)
provides as follows:

General Advice

* You must see the applicant's original documents;
« “You must check that the documents are valid with the applicant present;
and

* “You must make and keep copies of the documents and record the date you
made the check.

Checking the Documents

Im relation to cheacking the documents it also adds that an employer needs to
check that:

« the documents are genuine, original and unchanged and belong to the
person who has given them to you;

The dates for the applicant’s right to work in the UK haven't expired;
Photos are the same across all documents and look like the applicant;
Dates of birth are the same across all documents;

The applicant has permission to do the type of work you're offering
{including any limit on the number of hours they can work);

For students you see evidence of their study and vacation times; and
o |f 2 documents give different names, the applicant has supporiing

documents showing why they're different, e.g. a marriage certificate or
divorce decree

Taking a copy of the documents
When you copy the documents:

+ Make a copy that can't be changed, e.q. a photocopy

Tudalen 41



for passports, copy any page with the expiry date and applicant's details
(e.g. nationality, date of birth and photograph) including endorsements, e.g.
a work visa

for biometric residence permits and residence cards (biometric format),
copy both sides

for all other documents you must make a complete copy

keep copies during the applicant's employment and for 2 years afterthey
stop working for you

record the date the check was made

If the job applicant can’t show their documents

You must ask the Home Office to check your employee or potential employee's
immigration employment status if one of the following applies:

you're reasonably satisfied that they can't show you their documents
because of an outstanding appeal, administrative review or application with
the Home Office;

they have an Application Registration Card: or

they have a Certificate of Application that is less than 6§ months old
Application registration cards and certificates of application must state that
the work the employer is offering is permitted. Many of these documents
don't allow the person to work,

The Home Office will send you a 'Posifive Verification Notice' to confirm that the
applicant has the right to work. You must keep this document.

Acceptable Documents

A list of acceptable documents can be found via the link to

https:/fwww.gov.ukigovernment/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/441
85 T/employers guide to acceptable right to work documents v5. pdf

Tudalen 42



Appendix B — Statutory Guidance &
Caselaw

Statutory Guidance (s182 LA 2003) and the Authority's
Licensing Policy

3.33  In order to avoid punitive action, respondents to review hearings sometimes
refer to both the statutory guidance issued under section 182 Licensing Act
2003 and those parts of the Authority’s own policy which replicate
paragraph 11.10 of that Guidance, viz:

Whaere authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns
about problems identified at premises, it's good practice for them fo give
licence holder’s early warning of their concerns and the need for
improvement, and where possible they should adwvise the licence or
cerfificate hofder of the steps they need (o fake to address those
COMCEIMS.

3.34 Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) submits that in the particular
circumstances of cases where Immigration Compliance and Enforcement
receive intelligence conceming the employment of illegal workers and act
upon it; such wamings are inappropriate.

3.35 Not only would advance warning of enforcement activity prevent the
detention of persons committing crimes and the securing of evidence; a
warning after the event to comply with immigration legislation serves as no
deterrent.

3.36 In particular; Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) submits that
paragraph 11 .10 of the Guidance must be read In conjunction with the
more specific paragraphs relating to reviews arising in connection with
crime (paras. 11.24 — 11.29).

3.37 Paragraph 77.26

Where the licensing authorily is conducting a review on the grounds that
the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to
determine what steps should be faken in connection with the premises
licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. (...). The
licensing authority's duty is fo fake steps with a view to the promotion of
the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the

Tudalen 43



inferests of the wider community and not those of the individual licence
holder.

3.38 Thus the financial hardship occasioned by the suspension or revocation of
the premises licenze should not sway the sub-committee but instead it
should look at what is appropriate to promote tha objective within the wider
business and local community given “illegal labour exploits workers, denies
work to UK citizens and legal migrants and drives down wages® (Rt. Hon
James Brokenshira, Immigration Minister on the introduction of the 2016
Bct).

3.39 In particular; the sub-committee are asked to consider (below) the cases of
R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates' Court; [2008] WLR
(D)

350 and East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif (Trading as Zara's
Restaurant and Takeaway), [2076) EWHC1265 (Admin) where in both
cases the High Court stated remedy of the harm or patential harm is not
fthe anly consideration and that delerrence is an appropriate considerafion
in dealing with reviews where thers has been activily in connection with
crime.

3.40 Paragraph 11.27 of the Guidance states:

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed
premises which should be treated particularly seriously, These are the use
of the licensed premises(... )Jfor employing a person who is disqualified
from that work by reason of thelr immigration status in the UK,

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) would draw the sub-committee's
attention to the change in wording of this paragraph following the April 2017
revision of the guidance, where the previous reference to “knowingly
employing’ was removed.

3.41 Paragraph 11.28 of the Guidance states:

It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcemeant) and other law enforcement agencies, which
are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to
deter such acfivities and crime. Where reviews arise, and the licensing
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being
undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is
expected that revocation of the licance — even in the first instance - should
be seriously considered,

Tudalen 44



Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) considers this paragraph self-
explanatory; where an enterprise employs illegal workers, it is the duty of
Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) to bring forward reviews and for
the authority to consider revocation in the first instance,

3.42 In support of this statement; Home Office {Immigration Enforcement) would
draw the subcommittee's attention to the “Guidance for Licensing
Authorities to Prevent lllegal Working in Licensed Premises in England and
Walas" (Home Office) [April2017] where at section 4.1 it states;

“It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies will use
the review procedures effectively to deter illegal working”.

3.43 Since the main draw for illegal migration is work, and since low-skilled
migrants are increasingly vulnerable to exploitation at the hand of criminal
enterprises, the government has strengthened enforcement measures and
the statutory Guidance lo deter ilegal workers and those that employ them.

3.44 Deterrence is a key element of the UK government's strategy to reduce
illegal working and is supported by both the Guidancs and Case Law.

Case Law

3.45 Deterrence as a legitimate consideration by a licensing sub-committee has
been considered before the High Court where remedial measures (such as
the imposition of additional conditions) were distinguished from lagitimate
deterrent (punitive) measuras such as revocation.

3.46 R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates' Court; [2008] WLR (D)
a50.

This was a case where a premises had sold alcohol o under age persons
and subsequently the licensing authority suspended the licence. This was
overfurned on appeal lo the Magistrates' Court and subsequently appealsd
o the High Court by the authority. The premises licence holder argued that
they had a policy in place for checking the age of customers, but this was not
a perfect policy and had not been adhered fo and that rathar than revoke the
licence, instead siringent conditions on proof of age should instead be
imposed on the licence.

Tudalen 45



3.47

3.48

3.49

3.50

3.51

Issues relevant to the case before today's sub-committee which were
considered in the Basseflaw judgement included whether a licensing
authority was restricted to remedial action (as opposed to punitive action
such as revocation); and the precedence of wider considerations than those
relating to an individual holder of a premises licence when certain criminal
aclivities (as specified in the Guidance) took place.

It specifically examined (and set aside in the case of ‘certain activities') those
parts of the Guidance now contained within paragraph 11 .20 and 11 23, viz:

In declding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing
authorities should so far as possible seek fo establish the cause or causes
of the concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action taken
should generally be directed at these causes and should always be no
maore than an appropriate and proportionate response fo address the
causes of concern that instigafed the review. However, it will always be
important that any detrimental financial impact that may result from a
licensing authority's decision /s appropriate and proportionate to the
promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal
working in icensed premises.

In her judgement, Mrs Justice Slade stated (at 32.1 & 33.1 of the citation):

“Where criminal activity s applicable, as here, wider considerations come
into play and the furtherance of the licensing objective engaged includes the
prevantion of crime. In those circumstances, deterrence, in my judgment, is
an appropriate objective and one contemplated by the guidance issued by
the Sacretary of State. (...) However, in my judgment deterrence is an
appropriate consideration when the paragraphs specifically directed to
dealing with reviews where there has been activily in connection with crime
are applicable.”

Having confirmed the legitimacy of punitive measures
(suspension/revocation) for offences listed in what is now contained within
paragraph 11.27 of the Guidance, Mrs Justice Slade concerned herself with
another aspect of the appeal—namely the imposition of conditions which
were already present but not properly implemented (paragraph34.1).In this
case the appellant was suggesting that proof of age conditions(rather than
revocation) could be imposed to ensure that the legal requirement not to sell
alcohol to those under 18 years of age was met by him and his staff,

This has some similarity with any argument that may be put forward in the
case before the subcommittee today that the imposition of conditions to
check immigration status either directly or through an agency (essentially a
requirement since 2006 under the Immigrafion, Asylum and Immigration Act
2006) would serve as sufficient remedy for the employment of illegal workers

Tudalen 46



3.52

353

3.54

3.55

3.56

and negate a deterrent (suspension/revocation) being imposed by the
subcommittee despite the wording of the Guidance at paragraph 11.28.

Mrs Justice Slade stated: “The sixth new provision was accepfable
identification to establish the age of a purchaser shall be a driving licence
with photographs, passport or proof of age scheme card recognised by or
acceptable by the licensing authority. |am told these provisions were
already in place, but not properly implemenfed. No doubt those are perfectly
sensible and appropriate provisions to be included on a licence. However, it
is said thaf the action taken on appeal being confined in affect to reiterating
existing practice with a minimal addition was entirely inappropriate fo meet
the sftuation where there have been sales of alcohol fo 14-year-old girls",

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) contends that in the case before the
subcommittes the facts are similar. In the cited case straight forward,
sensible enquiries could have been made as to the age of the children and
the imposition of additional conditions as a form of remedy was considered in
appropriate by Mrs Justice Slade for ‘those serious cases' set out in the
Guidance.

In the case before the subcommittee, simple steps (set out at Appendix A)
were available to prevent the employment of illegal workers -none were
taken; the imposition of conditions to remedy this situation is inconsistent
with the section 182 Guidance and this case citation. A negligent employer
should expect revocation in the first instance.

East Lindsay District Council v Abu Hanif (Trading as Zara's Restaurant and
Takeaway), [2076] EWHC 7265 {Admin)

This is a recent High Court decision (published April 2018) which has
similarities with the one before the sub-committee in that it related to the
employment of an illegal worker and where a prosecution for such had not
been instigated.

Amongst other matters it had been argued for the premises licence holder
that the crime prevention objective was not engaged where a prosecution or
conviction for the employment of an illegal worker was not in place. Whilst
the initial hearing may have suggested sewveral illegal workers being
employed, the High Court appeal and decision related to the employment of
ane individual and is therefore, Home Office (Immigration Enforcement)
would argue, indistinguishable from the matter before the subcommittee
today.

The case reaffirms the principle that responsible authorities need not wait for
the licensing objectives to actually be undermined; that crucially in
considering whether the crime prevention objective has been engaged a
prospective consideration (i.e. what is likely to happen in the future) of what
is warranted is a key factor. It alzo reaffirmed the case of Bassellaw in
concluding that deterrence is a legitimate consideration of a sub-committes.
Mr Justice Jay stated: “The question was not whether the respondent had
been found guilty of criminal offences before a relevant fribunal, but whether

Tudalen 47



revocation of his icence was appropriate and proportionate in the light of the
saltent licensing objectives, namely the prevention of crime and disorder.

This requires a much broader approach fo the issue than the mere
identification of criminal convictions. It is in part refrospective, in as much as
antecedent facts will usually impact on the statutory question, but importantly
the prevention of crime and disorder requires a prospective consideration of
whatl is warranted in the public interest, having regard fo the twin
considerations of prevention and deterrence. In any event, | agree with Mr
Kolwn that criminal comvictions are nof required.” (Paragraph 18)

Mr Justice Jay added: "Having regard in particular to the twin requirements of
prevention and defarrence, there was in my judgment only one answer to this
case. The respondent exploited a vulnerable individual from his community
by acting in plain, albeit covert, breach of the criminal law. In my view his
licenze should be revoked.” (Paragraph 23)

Tudalen 48



Appendix C — Supporting Evidence

Witness Statement 10 [l 2224
Witness Statement 10 || IR 25
Exhibit SHO1 10 [ N 26
Witness Statement 10 | NG 27-28
Exhibit CC06/06/19 10 [ Pages 1-10 20-38
Witness Statement A0 [N 39

Tudalen 49



RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedurs Rules, r 27.2: Criminal Justics Act 1967, 5.9; Magistrates' Gourt Act 13080, s 58

— | —
BRAlEmMEr] G i e e e s vt ]
Age If under 18 = aver 18 [F sver 15 raart over 187 Decupation: Immigration Officer.. _.........—........ .

This statement (consisting of  3pages) each signed by me) is irue (o the best of my knowledge and
balled and | make i knowing thal, if # s tendered In evidenca, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have
wiliully slated in I, anything which | knew Lo be false, or do not believe Lo be trus,

Bgnature: oo Date 20" Movember 2019

Tick If wilness avidence Is visually recorded || fsupety winess details on mmar)

I am employed by the Home Office a5 an Immigration Officer a1 the Immigration Complisnce and
Enforcement (ICE) Team, Ficor 2, 31-33 Newport Road, Cardiff, CF24 0AR,
O THURSDAY 6° June 2019, 1. along with colleagues from the Cardiff [CE Team, attended SANREMO
ITALLAN RESTALRANT, 131 <133 CAERLEON ROAD, NEWPORT, NP12 THZ.
My robe on this panicular visit was as Officer in Charge (OIC).  Entry was gained a1 2032 hours under
Sectlon 17% of The Licensing Act 2003,
As | entered the premises, | noled twe males working behind the bar, Both were preparing drinks and a table
of approximately & people were present in the restaurand, They appeared Lo have finished their meals. |
introduced myself to the two males behind the bar, showed by warrant card and asked who was the persan in
Charge, [ served the Notice to Occupier o the male who initially identified kimselfia be in charge, Mr

I requested soeess 10 the kilchen anea by fully informed consent, He was hesitant (o agree.
Al this point, 10 informed me vin airwave radio, that 8 person had attempted 1o New om the rear
doar and hed been arrested as a person lisble 1o be detnined, OHficers, therefore entered the kilchen ares
under Paragraph 234, Schedule 2 of The Immigration Act 1971 as amended in order to search for
ideitification of the arrested male. [ was informed via radio thst another male was present in the kilchen and
suppart was requesied. The arrest 1 pairing, wenl throwgh to the kitchen io assist. 1 remained in the

restaurant area with Mr &nd ane ather male,

Tudalen 50



1recall Mr _asking 1o speak io me in B quisier area, he invited me in to ibe kichen. | asked CHO
L cawer the restaurani area whilst | spoke with bir

Mir informed me that he had entered the United Eingdom itlegally, ke cumently had a marriage

application sabmitted with the Home Office, he is married (o a rational, has mo children and

reporis regularly o Immigration at the Cardiff Odffice,

Home Dffice checks confirmed that Mr bad bheen served with form REDOO0N on 160419,

iderifying him & an illegal epran to the United Kingdom who was liable to be deiained. He was setup 1o

repost on & moathly basis, with his mext reponing event scheduled For 1170619 and his spplicmbon for an

EEA Resbdensy Card was rgected on 290519,

Al 2055 hours, [ arrested BMr a% a perzon liable 1o be detained and remaved from the United

Kingdom as his application for an EEA residency Card had been repecied and he had no outstanding

applications with the Home Oiffice,

Tihen asked Mr the following question;

)} How lomg have you worked here?

A [ am notl working. | am only here for today.

Al approximaiely 2120 hours | declared a critical incident with CIO as it had becoeme spparent that
ke male [ had left in the restaurant area with C1O - had dimppeared, moat likely ihrough a
‘window on 1t fizor lesding onba a fat roof balcony srea. Al 2125 hours, 1 conizseted the Police for asstsiancs
senguiries were made al the flat next door, nuriber 133A and neighbouring properties, unforturately nobody
‘had seen or heard anyihing. A thorough search of the prenuses and the sumounding area was conducted by
Police, Police dispatched officers 1o the address given by in case the missing male wha it
cranapdred lived at the same address was present bl no one was at the sddress

Saviafled (hat if male had escaped, be was not in the pesr vicinity and was not injured, | made a call made 1o
the nurnber held far the Licenee holder. However, the person who answered the phone dended being Ardian
MATMULA or having any link to Sanremo Restaurant. [ requested their details so that | could inform
licensing that defails held were incomeet, the male then asked il he could call me back as be was driving ansd
pramptly ended the call. He did not call back and the number was ther. unsbizinsble on subsequent attempls

mede. Using Keys found om the premises, T secured the premises, ersured appliances in the kilchen were

Tudalen 51



RCSTRICTED {when comploto)

switched off, lights tumed off and the sign on door swiiched 1w elossd.

In tevtal, 3 mabes were ammestad a4 the scene having been identified as ilbegal entrams o the United Kingdam. |
male escaped and could not be Jocated. All were helping with the nenning of ibe business that evening. The
peraon in Charge could nol be confirmed on the night in question as all denied being employed at ihe

premises and the sontact details held for the Licence holder bed o a person whoe denied being the Licence

holder. C qucnily, & referral potice was cerved by poet. ?
[—
S o
—_—
N .

RESTRICTED {when complete)

e CERIRT
(o

Tudalen 52



HEEEEEENE RSN EE
Official Sensitive

WITHESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1987, 5, 9; Magistrates' Courls Act 1980, 58,58
itk —
Slalemand al
Aga if under 18: over 18 [ ovar 1§ inseel ver 15 Occupatiore Immigration Officer

This statemenl {consisling of 1 page signed by me) s tue [ the best of my knowiedge and balief and §
mEke It knowing thal, if it & tendared in evidence, | shall be llable 1o prasecution if | hase wlfully slated in it
anyfhing which | know o be talza, or do not belisve to be irua.

Sugrabure: Date: 24-10-2018

I am an Immigration Officer, warrant number 7472, with the Home OMce Immigration
Enforcemant Team, based at GENERAL BUILDINGS, 31-33 NEWPORT ROAD, CARDIFF.
On Thursday 6% JUME 2019 | was on duty wilh officers from the Cardiff Arrest Team whan
we attended SANREMO ITALIAM RESTAURANT, 131-133 CAERLEON ROAD, NEWPORT,
MNP18 TBZ. The Officer in Charge of the visit was Immigration Officar | . Entry to
the premises was intended to be under Seclion 178 of Licensing Act 2003 as amended by
Immigration &ct 2016. | was allocated the role of rear cover Officer with Officer
At approximately 20,34 hours | ammived at the premises and made my way to the
rear lame running behind the premisas with Officer .. | heard Officer
spaak to a male who had tried {o leave the rear of the premises. At 20,38 hours | witnessed
Officer amest the male | now know as ; mala, bom
At approximately 20.38 hows | enfered the premises through the rear door with
Officer and under mmigration Act 1871(as amanded) Power
Schedule 2 Paragraph 25A. Whilst in tha premises | took a photograph of the Employers
Liabifity Certificate which | atiach as Exhibit SH01. The Employers Liability Carificate was
hanging on the wall behind the bar. | alsa want to the first floar of the premises with Officer
o Iry and locate an unknown male who had been witnessed by Officer
' going upstalrs In the restavrant. Bolh myself and Officer WErs
unable to locate the male. At 22.11 hours | departed the premises.

-
Sionalura ... . . Signatura winessed by M~ (ll"c!

--. EE BN N B BN W BN BN
= TR R

Tudalen 53



L -

1"
o= FLTL

A

ACCELERANT

CERTIFICATE OF EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY IMNEURAMCE )

TWreie requirsd by iegulation & of Fa Bepkevan’ Laba ICosmendncry briurercs| Hspiatens
1808 [tha ﬂhnmlmrmmuamﬁmha&uumhu
dvch confespe

B wd the poboy holcar smpioys #Fy relaven| soployes of dw Saas or e scroson 0 shel

1.

2.

relaivs Thesa erile el e e o 3 T BV i eMEon [orm sned o smeeen
BTkt L0 whomn d releies hes iesson able scceas o o i et b !

Pallcy Nowsbar: S0 3qT44628

MAME OF POLICY HOLDER ; Mir Adrian Matupg ¥ Sanmeme
DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF INSURAMCE: 34 Dacamber 2048

1, DATE OF EXPIAY OF INSEURAHKCE ! 23 Dacemisar D8

W heraby corily tha sutiact Lo passgraph 2 -

1

thi padioy 12 wieeh feis candicas raies the req of e el L b

afcdkecntin & Drpal Britsin, Modses belasd tha 1ek of Han, & (sans ol ey Ba

Infand of Guemiay and the llsod of Aldamey, or @ offshars incafadors in sny wles
T Lindead Mingdor 1o e Emplayen’ Liabile {Comp e e

TS o ey dinig primary =g pplan (k) and
¢t minkemm mmenn of eovar prowided by Bis pelicy b nn ks tan £5.000.000(ck

Sigrad on behal of Aeeslemt Agency (B LS e basha® of HDH Oflokal BE - UK

Tudalen 54



N | il

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procadura Rules, r 37.2; Criminal Justice Act 1887, s, 9; Magistrates' Courts Act 1960, .68

URN
Siatemant ol o : i _— I

Age il under 18: over 18 W ovar 18 e e 18) Ohecupalion: Immigration Officer

This statemant (consisting of 1 page signed by me) is frue 1o tha bast of my knowledge and belied and |
make H knowing that, & & is tendered in avidenca, | shall ba lable b prosaculion if | have wilfully stasad in 2
anything which | know ko be false, or do not believe 1o ba trua.

Sigrature: Cate: 04-11-2019

I am an Immigration Officer, warrant number 18108, with the Home Office Immigration
Enforcement Team, based st GENERAL BUILDINGS, 31-33 NEWPORT ROAD, CARDIFE.
On Thursday 8" JUNE 2019 | was on duty with officars from the CARDIFF Amest Team
when we attanded SANREMO |TALIAN RESTAURANT, 131-133 CAERLEON ROAD,
NEWPORT, NP19 TBZ. On enforcement visils | wear full P.P.E and am cleary identified as
HOME OFFICE IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT personnel. | identify myself to all parsons |
encounter with my warrant identity card and badge prior to speaking with them. The Officer
in Charge of the visit was Immigration Officer Eniry to the premises was
intandad to be wunder Seclion 172 of Licensing Act 2003 as amended by Immigration Act
2016. | was allocated the role of Amest Officer. At approximately 20.33 hours | arrived at the
premises and madse my way inio the premises with the OIC I went 1o the back of the
kiichen and | encountered a gentleman at 20:35 In the kitchen prepping food, | asked him to
could | ask him a few questions using BIG WORD INTREPETER using language
interpreler code POOSTD31, his name was - rrala

After a few guestions please see exhibit CCOB/06M9 the subject lold me that he cams
into the UK on the back of a lomy, | completed checks and there was no frace on home office
systems or CRS systems. As the subject told me that he came into the UK on the back of a
lerry and fhere were no trace | established that the subject was an illegal entrant in the
UNITED KINGDOM | therefore armested the subject as being an flegal entrant in the UNITED
KINGDOM using the administration caution and infarmed him that he is under armest under
Paragraph 2 Schedule 17.1 of the Immigration Act 1871 | as amended). Mr wWas
advised that he had entered the UNITED KINGDOM without valid leave, an offence under
24 (1) (a) of the Immigration Act 1971 (as armended). Mr confirned that he
understood the administrative caution.

Officlal Sensitive I B EEEER

Tudalen 55




Official Sensitive

I canducled a full mitigating circumstance intanisw please seea axhibit number CCOGM0EM 9. |
then went through some illegal working questions with him please see EXHIBIT CCOG/06/19
for the quastians that | asked, The subject claimed that this was his first day et working at the
SANREMD ITALIAN RESTAURANT as he pravicusly worked at the car wash in London and
it was hard work. At 2109 was then Searched by my male cover officer
and no objects were found, A1 21:37 | was asked by the DIC ta conduct lllegal
working guestions on tha subject that was encountered and armested by OIC at 21:00.
He was encountared at front of the house his name was | i e

. please see EXHIBIT REF CCOG/06MS for the questions that ware conducted
with the subject. The subject stated that this was also his first day end he was working frond
of house, he also told me thal he did ot want Lo tall me the ndividuals name that contactad
hirm and asked to help out but it was & friend of a friend. After conducting the questions, |
ascorted the subject using the cormect use of force an escort position. | approximately left the
premisas at 22:13 hws on 06/06/2019. The =ubject was then transported to BRIDGEMD
police station and sarvad with an llkegal Entrart and detention paperwork by mysedtf. | exchibil
CCOE/0E/M 9 which is a 10 page print oul of my electrical notes which | mada at the time of

the immigration enforcement visit. = [ ——__
e
e
Sigraluré. Fapm—nr oong e anscipuiep: Sigealure wibhessed by ..'"""l.-"l:l'.

Official Sensitive

. .

Tudalen 56



Haqel

OFFICIAL SEMSITIVE

Eja

A T il T R e e
i A & e

i .;_i gl =
DateTime 06-05-2018 2003328
Qeatgeatian Easting 331mes
Harthing 133003
Wish reference |E\"2-ﬂ-15.iﬂ'i
Prirtad 4112019 al 11:17 OFFICIAL SEMBITIVE

Page 1 of 1

Tudalen 57



e

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

|Em".:mnt_§r : } sy

IDetails

Type of work Visit

Wisit reforence Ev24-16,201

Created by

ProniniD

Tirmne 2035

Created at geslocation Easting LT
Morthing 188967

Creation date 6082018 20:35:33

Chosen Identity

Idantity sourcety e Declared

Mama

poB

‘Gander lale

Matlomakity

Languages

Languages spoken |mone specified

Interpreter used? Yas

Interpratar datalis Intarpreter cods - pDDDTO31

Encounter

Type of encountnr Subnjack

rEnr.wnurh-‘ officar .

{Declared immigration status |hegal entrant

|How and whan did the subject last | Came Last yesr on back of loery

ender the UKF

| this parson the subject of the visi?

M

whao Is not the subject of the visit

kilehen

Justification for guestioning semeone |Inle sisted posaible ilegal warkers an premises subject was working in

Whara in the premises was the
subject located?

imen prepaing food

oy

Do you know the subject's CID Person |Mo

Issuas

Detalks of vulnerabilities! safeguarding

Printed 4/11/2019 at 10:16

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 1 of 2

Tudalen 58




DFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Sactlon 55 BsuasT

Mo
Referral to socfal services? Mo
Moi

Referral to NRM (Mational Referral
Mechanism|?

[ Duty to NotifyMS1 referral made?

References [Person ID, HO Ref, Port
Ref, BRP)

Bicgraphic search results Systems checked ciD
Fesult of checks Mo breca

Status returmed by Mo lrace
myetam checks

ldentity Documentation
Mo documantation provided.

MNotes

Spoka to Inlepreter and confirmed

Printed 4/1 172015 at 10:16 QOFFICIAL SEMSITIVE Fage 2 of 2

Tudalen 59




. TIPe]
s Sy o) 19 s N T

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

llegal Working -Employes =~ == =
Datails
Type of work Wit
Visil reference EW24-18,20
Created by
ProntolD
Subject G0 Parson 1D Unknawn
Subject name
Subject DOB
Subject nationality
Subject gander Male
Tima 21:13
Created at geolocation Easting INGE5
Narthing 188585
Croation dats |o5-08-2015 21:12:48
Language of Interview
Whal language is tha Inferview carried
aut in?
Intarprater used? Tes
Datalls of interprater POOE3IT10
Obligation
How long have you been warking 'Warking in a car wash down in Lendon bul today is my first day working on
hare? car wash was vany ham
rmnhwmhﬁmlunﬁulnmr I'was just learming things today and preps as today is my frst day
duties?
What daysi hours do you work each || don't knew how many 85 s is my first day
ek ¥
Control
Who gave you this job (name and role |Frend of friend | don't know name
[in business)?
Whao tells you what days! heurs b | didm [alk aboul hours as this was a irial
work?
tells you whal tasksl dutbes to do || don't know the narme of the persaon the persan i nol hére loday
each day?

Printed 4/11/2019 a1 11:19 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE “age 1 of 2

Tudalen 60




— Ly L I A= i

OFFICIAL SEMSITIVE

Remuneration

How are you paid (money, Nl gty paid
accommodation, food)?

Hiow are yoa pald {monay, hulsﬁuhai:h‘p'mglug:thinmwmdim
accommodation, food)?
whara did you sloep last night {London | came by frain today
Pre-employment Checks

‘What nama does the semployer know
you as’?

Did you show documanis batore | didr'l give any documentation | just came and asked can | wark snd hase a
belng offered the job? If 50, what? Iry

Inmmrm.phﬂrm:'m not  |Mao he didn't kniow
allawed to work in the U7

Additional Quastions

Who slse works hera? [
Photographs

o phofographs

Declaration

Interdewan signature { ]

Obsarvations

Observations Irvlespreder confirned ihal he undessiocd all ibe guestions and was happy to
aign Tor ma.

Printed 4/11/2019 at 11:19 OFFICIAL SEMSITIVE Page 2 of 2

Tudalen 61



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Mitigating Circumstances =~

Datalls

Type of work Visit

Visit reference EV24-16,201

Created by

PrantolD

Subject CID Person ID Unknawn

Subject name

Subject DOB -

Subject nalionality

Subject gender Male

Created at geoloation Easting 231963

Horthing 188583

Creation date D6-06-2018 21:08.17
Medical

Currently taking amy medication Yes

Length of time medication taken Immmsm
Details of medication! dosags |Pain relief rat prescribed
Medication prescribed b | ot p rescribed
Registered with a GP sungery |m

Haspital treatment of conaullations Fm

received in the past 3 years?

Curtently awaiting NHS treatment  |No
[Pregnant No
|Motes

Partner and Dependants in UK

Mo padner or degendants in She LI

Criminal History

Criminai histary in the UK |
il:thlni history in angthar country [ma
[siates

Armed Forces
Subjectl dependant is a member of (A
Armed Forces?

Printed 4/11/2019 at 11:22

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 1 of 2

Tudalen 62



P =11+ [ -._|-_-L:|._"|.l-.: I-__

OFFICIAL SENSITAVE

Declaration

|Notes - |
[inlerviewse signature * ’ ]

Printed 4/11/2019 a1 11:22 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 2 of 2

Tudalen 63




OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

week?

llogal Working - Employee :

Details

Type of work Visik

Vislt referance EW24-18, 201

Created by

[ProntolD [

[Subject CID Person 10 13350951

Subject name e

Subject OB

Subject nationality

Subjact gendar Wala

Tims 2137

Created at gealecation Easting 231065
Morihing 188004

Crealion date 0E-06-2018 21:37:25%

Language of Interview

What |anguags ks the interview carvied |English

outin?

Intarprater usod? e

Obligation

How long have you been warking Just teday

here?

What Is your job rolel what ane your | Frand of house

dutles?

What days! hours do you work each  (Dor( knew

why are you working here today
what's the reason

|Favour af a friend they callad me

lwhat was the name of the person that
Julhd you

| dan’t wanl ta give his name

Control

in business)?

'Who gave you this job (name and rele |Don't want io ghve his name

wach day?

Who tells you whal tasks! duties bo da | Don'l wand 1o 188 you his nama

Printad 41172019 at 12:48

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 1aof2

Tudalen 64



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

|ler|urnr.utlun

Ime you paid [money,
accammodation, food]?

Cash

If momney, how mech and how do you
recalva R7

Dion'l krow e might nol pay me al all

]ﬂummhr.muh:whlw L]
MNational Insurance number?

Ha

whare did you sleep last night

|Fn-nmphwmnt Checks

What name doss the amployar Know
you as7

Did you show documants belore
baing offered the job? If 8o, what?

| Mo

Daes your employer know you're not
allowed to work in the UK?

rDm"thnmr

Additional Questions

Who else works. hare?

|! v i idaa

[Photographs

Mo photograghs.

Declaration

Interviewee signature I

Observations

——m

Primted 4511720119 at 12:46

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 2 of 2

Tudalen 65



el S =
&

CFFICIAL SENSITIVE

|Departure
Officer
DabelTina 08-08-2018 221313
Geclocation | Mo geolocation available
Wisil reference Ev24-16,201
Frinted 41172012 at 11:21 QOFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 1 of 1

Tudalen 66



MG11 (M)

RESTRICTED {when complete)

— e —

WITHNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, 5.9: Magisirates' Courl Act 1880, = 58

LIRM
Statement of: [, . ... :

Age if under 18: Over 1B ... ([#over B ;nsed bvor 187 Occupation: Assistant imemigration Officar ...,

This statérnent (consisting of 1 page(s) each signed by me) |8 true o the best of my knowledge and bekel and |
mike it knowing thal, i it is tendered in avidence, | shall be liae 1o prosecution if | have wifuly staled in i,
anything which | knaw 1o be false, or do nod believe o be frue.

BT st i1 0000 100084ttt e et s e e st e en et Digle 03122018 .o

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded ] [aayniy wilness chafas on mas

I am employed by the Home Office as an Immigration Offcer at the Immigration and Complinnes and Enforcement
Team at General Buildings, Floor 2, 31-33 Newpart Road, Cardiff. CF24 DAB.

On THURSDAY ath JUNE 2019 1 attended SANREMO ITALIAN RESTAURANT, 131-133
CAERLEON ROAD, NEWPORET, NP19 TBZ on information there was an immigration offender on the
premises.

I arrived ar the premises at approximately 20:36 in full PPE. 1 was rear cover officer for the enforcerment
visit, Shortly after the team entered through the main front door of the business, 1 observed a male
attempting to leave the premises from the rear door. [ had reasonable belief that the subject attempied to
leave the premises on sight of officers entening the premise through the front door, giving me reasonable
grounds to believe that the male was an immigration offender. The male, who | now know -

male bom . was arrested under Paragraph 17(1) of Schedule 2 of the 1971

Immigration Act (as amended) as | suspected they were persons liable to be detained and removed from

the UK. At approxmmately 21:25 [ then began to qu:stlnn- -maJE hnml

- in rélation to his employment at the restaurant, The questions were conducted in
EMGLISH which he was happy to continue with. My questions and Mr answers were recorded in
my notebook and below as follows:

(). How long have you been working here?
A [ don’t work here | was visiting friends to play foothall.
(). How long have you been working here?

A. I'm not working here

- male borm I

Checks on Home office records were conducted confirming that

_ has no pertmission fo work in the UK.

N1
A

Tudalen 67



APPENDIX B

Premises Licence Sanremo, 131 Caerleon Road, Newport, NP19 7BZ.

Schedule 12
Part A e

(THIS PART OF THE LICENCE
MUST BE KEPT AT THE
PREMISES AT ALL TIMES AND
PRODUCED UPON REQUEST OF

AN AUTHORISED OFFICER) Ncwpor[

Premises Licence CITY COUNCIL
City of Newport CYNGOR DINAS
Casnewydd
Premises Licence Number 18/00556/LAPVPT

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including Post
Town, Post Code

Sanremo

131 Caerleon Road
Newport

South Wales

NP19 7BZ

Telephone number

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Not Applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Sale by retail of Alcohol
Playing of Recorded Music
Late Night Refreshment

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Sale by retail of Alcohol

Monday to Thursday inclusive 12:00 - 14:30
Monday to Thursday inclusive 18:00 - 23:30
Friday 18:00 - 23:30

Saturday 12:00 - 14:30

Saturday 18:00 - 23:30

Sunday 18:00 - 23:30

Playing of Recorded Music

Monday to Thursday inclusive 12:00 - 14:30
Monday to Thursday inclusive 18:00 - 23:30
Friday 18:00 - 23:30

Tudalen 68




Saturday 12:00 - 14:30
Saturday 18:00 - 23:30
Sunday 18:00 - 23:30

Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Sunday inclusive 23:00 - Midnight

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Thursday 12:00 - 15:00 and 18:00 - 00:00

Friday 18:00 - 00:00

Saturday 12:00 - 15:00 and 18:00 - 00:00

Sunday 18:00 - 00:00

Where non-standard timings are authorised, the opening times shall be as those authorised for
licensable activities with an additional 30 minutes on the terminal hour.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies

Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premises

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence
Ardian Matmuja

131 Caerleon Road

Newport

South Wales

NP19 7BZ

E Mail megard1@live.co.uk

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence
authorises for the supply of alcohol

Rifan Zoku

44 North Road

Bristol

BS35 1EB

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Party Reference: SGC/107208 Licensing Authority: South Gloucester Council

This Premises Licence is issued by Newport City Council as Licensing Authority under Part 3 of the
Licensing Act 2003 and regulations made thereunder.

Dated this 14th March 2018
e /A

Helen Wilkie

Public Protection Manager

Tudalen 69




Mandatory conditions

1 No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:
i) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence; or

ii) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is
suspended.

2 Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a
personal licence.

3 Where at specified times one or more individuals may be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each
individual must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.
For the purposes of this section:

i) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies; and

ii) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it applies in relation to
paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

4 The admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be restricted in accordance with any
recommendation made by the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) or in the absence of a
recommendation from the BBFC, the Licensing Authority.

For the purposes of this section:

i) "children" means persons aged under 18 years of age.

5 The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in
any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or substantially
similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the
premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to -
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises
before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or
to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a
licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and
consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; .

(e)dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is

unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

6 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where it is
reasonably available.

Tudalen 70



7 (1) The premises licence holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the
premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol
at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either :

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature

8 The responsible person must ensure that -

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than
alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed
container) it is available to customers in the following measures-

(i) beer or cider: 2 pint;

(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to customers
on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the
customer is made aware that these measures are available

New Mandatory condition for on and off sales from 28 May 2014

(1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a
price which is less than the permitted price.

(2) In this condition:-

(a) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P =D + (D x V), where-

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the
sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(b) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence-

i) the holder of the premises licence,

ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or
officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

~ o~~~

(3) Where the permitted price would not be a whole number of pennies, the permitted price shall be taken to be
the price rounded up to the nearest penny.

(4) Where the permitted price on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next
day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax, the permitted price which
would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the
period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Tudalen 71



Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1. No adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children, (including, but not exclusively, nudity or semi
nudity), regardless of whether children are present on the premises, are permitted within the premises at any
time when the premises is open to the public

2. All incidents of crime and disorder shall be reported to Heddlu Gwent Police and recorded in an incident log
book

3. All staff shall receive suitable training in respect of health & safety and fire safety and shall be aware of what
action is to be taken in the event of an emergency

4. No new customers will be permitted to enter the premises after 23:30hrs other than for take-away orders

Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

NIL.

Plans

Please see attached plans

Tudalen 72



Appendix C

Location of premises

' m 131 Caerleon Rd - Google Maps X e

& c @ googlecouk/maps/place/l?.l+Caer\eon+Rd +Newport+NP19+?BZ/@5159545?6 -2.9832056,122m/data=!3m1!1e314m513m4! 1503487 1ebddT5e8%Td:0xT 169fbbbfcdaddl... @ +F e

5 Nelport
Christadelphian,Hall
e Harp Studior. ’

uth Walgs Newpart

4 -’
Family ket é /
Q._f

2

Tudalen 73



T

on+Rd,+Ne 5!1stm-2k1 Tg1h * 8

Newport, Wales :

2 Google

(U~ StreetVi

133 B45%6

iew

Image capture: Jun 2019 2020 Google United Kingdom  Terms  Repart a problem

R (SISl 655

Newport, Wales *

2 Google

' [Ty~ StreetView

Image captre: Jun 2019 € 2020 Google  United Kingdom  Terms _Report a problem

) NERG RS RS

Tudalen 74




' Y 132 B4396 - Google Maps

€& C & google.co.uk/maps/place/131+Caerleon +Rd,+Newport+NP19+7BZ/@51.5954263,-2.983195,3a, 90y,264.91h,80.48t/data=!3m7!1e1!3m5!1stm-2k1Tq1M-i89dnx8z1Mg!2e016... b g e :

X

gdom  Term

) Ikt e )

wlem
s ||
w2 ||

Tudalen 75



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



	Agenda
	3 Is-bwyllgor Trwyddedu: Cod Ymarfer
	Conduct and Procedure of Licensing Sub-committee

	4 Adolygu Trwydded Safle o dan Adran 51 Deddf Trwyddedu 2003: Sanremo, 131 Heol Caerllion, Casnewydd, NP19 7BZ
	Licensing Sub Committee Report.
	Subject	Review of Premises Licence under Section 51 Licensing Act 2003, Sanremo, 131 Caerleon Road, Newport, NP19 7BZ
	1.	Review Application




